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Independent auditor’'s report
to the directors of China Everbright Water Limited

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Everbright Water Limited (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2024, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended and notes, comprising material accounting policy
information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial staiements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA®).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs")
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in Bermuda, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Independent auditor’s report to the directors of China
Everbright Water Limited (continued)

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Assessing expected credit loss allowance of trade receivables

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page

32.

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our
audit

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s total
gross carrying amount of trade receivables
was HK$6,071,978,000, with an allowance for
expected credit losses ("ECLs") of these
assets of HK$778,263,000.

Management measures the loss allowance for
trade receivables at an amount equal to the
lifetime ECL, based on the historical
repayment and loss patterns for different

groups of the customers, and ageing of trade
receivables.

The loss allowance is assessed collectively|
using a provision matrix, based on factors
such as the ageing of trade receivable
balances, the repayment history of the
Group’'s customers and credit risk profile of
the customers (including segmentation).

We identified the assessment for the loss
allowance of trade receivables as a key audit
matter because this assessment of ECLs is
inherently subjective and involves significant
management estimation.

Our audit procedures to assess the ECL
allowance for trade receivables included the
following: |
» understanding and evaluating the Group’s
policy and method for estimating the ECL
.allowance with .reference .to the
requirements of the applicable accounting
standard;

assessing the appropriateness of the key
assumptions used by management in the
ECL assessment, including the basis for|
segmentation of the trade receivables
based on similar credit risk profile of its
customers;

assessing the inputs used by the
management in the ECL assessment,
including whether the trade receivables
were categorised in the appropriate ageing
bucket by comparing individual items to the
relevant underlying billing notice, on a
sample basis; and

re-performing the calculation of the ECL
allowance as at 31 December 2024 based
on the Group's ECL allowance policies,
inputs and assumptions.
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Independent auditor’s report to the directors of China
Everbright Water Limited (continued)

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Key audit matters (continued)

Impaiment assessment of goodwill

Refer fo note 15 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting poficies on page

28.

The Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying
amount of goodwill of the Group was
HK$1,342,426,000, which had been
allocated to the groups of cash
generating units ("CGUs") comprising
wastewater treatment plants. Goodwill
represented 5% of the Group's total non-
current assets.

Management performs impairment test
on goodwill annually at the end of each
reporting period or whenever there is an
indication of impairment. This involves
comparing the carrying value of each
group of CGUs to which goodwill has
been allocated with its respective
recoverable amount, determined as the
higher of value in use and fair value less

costs of disposal, to assess whether an|
impairment loss should be recognised.|

Value in use is assessed based on
discounted cash flow forecasts.

This assessment requires the exercise of
significant estimation about the future
market conditions and future cash flows
including sales growth rates and
discount rates, all of which involve
inherent uncertainty.

We identified the impairment
assessment of goodwill as a key audit
matter as the goodwill impairment
assessments prepared by management
involve  significant estimation and
assumptions which could be subject to
management bias.

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of
goodwill included the following:

e understanding and evaluating the design and
implementation of key internal controls over the
impairment assessment of goodwill;

* assessing the appropriateness of management’s
identification of groups of CGUs, with reference
to the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

e comparing the cashflow forecasts prepared in
the previous year with the actual performance of
the businesses for the current year and inquired
with management about any significant
variations identified to assess whether there
were any indications of management bias;,

¢ evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology with reference to the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standards, and
evaluating the reasonableness of the discount
rates used by the management by benchmarking
against those of comparable companies, with the
assistance of our internal valuation specialists;

» assessing the reasonableness of sales growth
rates applied, with reference to our
understanding of the business, historical trends
and available industry information and market
data;

« performing sensitivity analyses of the sales
growth rates and discount rates, and considering
the resulting impact on the impairment
assessment for the year and whether there were
any indicators of management bias;

o re-performing the calculation to assess the
mathenmiatical accuracy; and

¢ assessing the reasonableness of the disclosure
in the consolidated financial statiements with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards.
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Independent auditor’s report to the directors of China
Everbright Water Limited (continued)

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Information other than the consolidated financial statements and auditor’s
report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all the
information included in the 2024 annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.,

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.
Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consaolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRS Accounting Standards issued by the
HKICPA and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concem and using the going concem basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do
so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Independent auditor’s report to the directors of China
Everbright Water Limited (continued)

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consoclidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying fransactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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Independent auditor’s report to the directors of China
Everbright Water Limited (continued)

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
(continued)

» Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business units within the Group as a basis for
forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and review of the audit work performed for purposes of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those maiters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’'s report is Lam Kai
Wa.

K G

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

30 April 2025



Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
ended 31 December 2024

For the financi

Revenue
Direct costs and operating expenses

Gross profit

Other income and gains, net

Administrative and other operating
expenses

Finance income

Finance costs

Share of (losses)/profits of associates

Share of profit of a joint venture

Profit before tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive loss

Other comprehensive loss not to be

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent

periods:

Exchange differences arising on translation

of functional currency to presentation
currency

Other comprehensive loss for the year,

net of income tax

Total comprehensive income for the
year

China Everbright Water Limited

Financial statements for the year ended 31 Decernber 2024

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000
6,851,018 6,704,684
(4,234.456) (3,882,301)
2,617,462 2,822,383

65,187 46,007

(702,557) (641,273)

13,529 26,658

(541,078) (590,921)

(7.174) 2,008

689 1,261

1,446,060 1,666,123
(319,066) (404,910)
............ 1,126,924 e 1,281,213
(270,523) (445,920)
____________ (270,523) ........{445,920)
856,471 815,293




China Everbright Water Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

(U

Consolidated stafé
(continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Note 2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 1,019,609 1,187,412
Holders of perpetual capital instruments 25,047 37,578
Non-controlling interests 82,338 36,223
1,126,994 1,261,213
Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company 769,515 774,922
Holders of perpetual capital instruments 25,047 37,578
Non-controlling interests 61,809 2,793
856,471 815,293
Earnings per share attributable to
equity holders of the Company 11
- Basic and diluted HK35.64cents HKA41.51cents

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



China Everbright Water Limited
Financlal statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

Consolidated statement of financial position

Asat31D B2 (
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Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets
Investment properties

Intangible assets
Gooadwill

Interests in associates
Interest in a joint venture
Contract assets

Other receivables
Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Contract assets

Other financial assets
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Note

12
13(a)

14
15
16

18
20
26(b)

18
21
19
20
22

As at 31 December

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
989,156 970,663
82,310 88,500
10,918 11,096
1,082,384 1,070,259
2,318,584 2,156,026
1,342,426 1,364,093
3,640 11,953
1,903 1,262
20,883,947 19,779,711
255,498 235,125

42 954 880
25931236 24,619,309
2,173,568 2,157,706
32,928 121,148
57,159 58,336
5,846,666 5,382,761
1,847,805 1,881,401
9,058,126 9,601,352



China Everbright Water Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

Consolidated statement of financial position (continued)

As at 31 D 2024
A ¥ \

( 1] é‘:"'
N o As at 31 December
\xﬁ____\;_,,/ Note 2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 23 3,283,728 3,241,736
Borrowings 24 4,181,329 4,606,893
Current tax liabilities 26(a) 53,013 84,410
Lease liabilities 13(b) 3,341 5,412
Total current liabilities 7,521,411 7,938,451
Net current assets 2,436,715 1,662,901
Total assets less current liabilities 28,367,951 26,282,210
Non-current liabilities
Other payables 23 61,406 -
Borrowings 24 12,208,281 10,798,480
Deferred tax liabilities 26(b) 2,105,199 2,029,945
Lease liabilities 13(b) - 1,387 1,443
Total non-current liabilities 14,376,273 12,829,868
Net assets - 13,991,678 13452342
Equity
Equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company
Share capital 27 2,860,877 2,860,877
Reserves 28 8,974,243 = 8,545244
11,835,120 11,406,121
Perpetual capital instruments 29 806,982 806,982
Non-controlling interests 1,349,576 1,239,239
Total equity ) 13,991,678 13,462,342

¢8> T e ]
Tao Junjie Wang Yuexing
Executive Director Executive Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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China Everbright Water Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

Foreign
currency Contributed Perpetual Non-
Share Shars translation Statutory surplus Other Retained capital controling Tolal
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserves eamings Tolal  instruments interests equily
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At1 January 2024 ...2860877 __1.599765" _(1378,419)7 ___ T76715% __ 1,220302" 82037 _ 63066787 11408121 ___ 808982 1,239,239 __ 13452342
Profit for the year - - - - - - 1,018,609 1,019,809 25,047 82,338 1,128,894
Othar comprehensive loss for the year:
Foreign currency transiation differences - - (250,004) - - - - (250,084) = (20,429) (270,623)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (250,004) - - - 1,019,809 769,515 25,047 81,908 856,471
Transfer to statutory reserve (note 28(I) - - - 122,875 - - (122,875) - - - -
Transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners:
2023 final dividend declared (note 10) - - - - - - (165,424) (165,424) - - (165,424)
2024 interim dividend declared (note 10) - - - - - - {175,002) (175,092) - - (175,002)
Capital contributions recelved by non-wholly
owned subsldiaries from non-controlling
shareholders - - - - - - - - - 48,428 48,428
Distribution fo holders of perpetual capital
instruments (note2¢) . i — . e R 8 e ek e (25.047) . ...... Y (25,047}
At 31 Decomber 2024 2,860,877 _ 1,599.785* _(1.625513)* 899.500* 1,220,302 B,203*  ©,862896" _ 11,835120 806,982 1,348,576 _ 13.991,678
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For the financial year ended 31 _umomB___\e%W

Atlributable to Iders of the Company

China Everbright Water Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

Foreign
currency Contributed Perpelual Non-
Sharg Share {ransiation Statutory surphus Other Retained capital controfing Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserves earnings Tofal  instruments inferests equity
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'00D HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At1 January 2023 ---2,880877 __ 169978587 __(e82920)" _ 689,734* __1,229302" _____ | 82037 68425387 10967490 806,882 1226406 __ 13,000,878
Profit for the year - - - - - - 1,187,412 1,187,412 37,578 36,223 1,261,213
Other comprehensive loss for the year:
Foreign currency translation differences - - (412,490) = - - - (412,490) - (33,430 (445,920)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (412,400) . - - 1,187,412 774,922 37,578 2,793 815,293
Transfer to statufory reserve (note 28(il)) - - - 88,981 - - (98,981} - - - -
Transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners:
2022 final dividend decfared (note 10) - - - - - - (148,380) (148,390) - - (146,380)
2023 interim dividend declared (note 10} - - = . - - (189,901) (189,201) - - (189,901)
Dividend declared 10 a non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary - . - - - - - - B (37,187) (37.187)
Capital contributions regeived by non-wholly
owned subsidiaries from non-contralling
shareholders - - - - - - - - - 47,227 47,227
Distribution to holders of perpetual capital
instruments (nete 20 T Y s A, S eeaant - A T S (37,578} ___________ =l (37,578)
At 31 December 2023 2,860,877 1,690,765 (1,375419) * 776,715* 1,228,302* 8,203" 6,306,678" 11,406,121 806,982 1,239,239 13,452 342

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$8,974,243,000 (31 December 2023: HK$8,545,244,000) as at 31

December 2024 in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

For the financial y

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Amortisation of intangible assets

Loss/(gain) on disposals of property,
plant and equipment

Loss on disposal of intangible assets

Finance costs

Finance income

Share of losses/(profits) of associates

Share of profit of a joint venture

Fair value changes of other financial
assets, net

Allowance for expected credit losses on
trade receivables, net

Allowance for expected credit losses on
other receivables, net

Allowance for expected credit losses on
contract assets

Effect of foreign exchange rates changes,
net

Operating cash flows before working
capital changes

Changes in working capital:
Decrease in inventories

Increase in contract assets

increase in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables

Cash generated from/(used in)
operations

People's Republic of China (“PRC") income
tax paid

Net cash flows used in operating
activities

©® @ FpN~owow o wmo
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China Everbright Water Limited

Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
1,446,060 1,666,123
50,502 51,771
10,873 10,055
148,744 150,841
630 (19)

= 2,853

541,076 590,921
(13,529) (26,658)
7,174 (2,008)
(689) (1,261)
(7,500) 32,804
164,170 194,487
20,523 466
1,623 1,282
(31,634) (100,668)
2,338,023 2,570,789
283 26,126
(1,362,547) (1,433,887)
(865,498) (1,565,580)
113,634 116,264
223,895 (286,288)
(281,834) (242,495)
__________ (57,939) . (528,783)



China Everbright Walter Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

Consolidated statement of cash flows (continued)
For the financia : d 31 December 2024

7 I
Note 2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of items of property, plant and
equipment (85,909) (54,079)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant
and equipment 314 233
Payment for additions of intangible assets (295,631) (1,636)
Capital contribution to an associate - (443)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from
associates (9,012) 2,836
Proceeds from redemption of other
financial assets 80,278 9,790
Interest received 13,528 26,658
Net cash flows used in investing
activies (298431) (16,641),

14



Consolidated statement of cash flows (continued)

For the financj randed 31 December 2024
Q&?“\ 6’?\"‘\
,’"'—\Q’EP R —jvi(% ~I

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from the issuance of medium-
term notes (*MTN")

Proceeds from the issuance of super and
short-term commercial papers ("SCP*)

Proceeds from the issuance of asset-
backed securities (“ABS")

Payments for expenses related to issuance
of MTN, ABS and new bank loans

New bank loans

Repayments of corporate bonds

Repayments of ABS

Repayments of SCP

Repayments of MTN

Repayments of bank loans

Interest paid

Principal elements of lease payments

Interest elements of lease payments

Increase in restricted bank balances

Dividends paid to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”)

Distributions to holders of perpetual capital
instruments

Capital contributions from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Net cash flows generated from/(used in)
financing activities

Net increase/(decrease} in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the year

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on
cash and cash equivalents, net

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of
the year

Note

15

China Everbright Water Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
1,631,700 3,868,200
- 1,152,800

2,065,300 -
(9,759) (14,111)
4,502,515 4,262,849
(761,460) (858,363)
(147,474) (152,684)

- (2,225,800)
(1,087,800) (1,089,500)
(4,971,167) (4,393,707)
(536,096) (550,329)
(8,003) (7,132)
(381) (353)
(197) (18,919)
(342,238) (336,718)
(25,047) (25,558)
48,428 10,040
........358,231 ........{379,285)
3,861 (924,700)
1,861,907 2,844,990
(37,340) (58,374)
1,828,428 1,861,907




China Everbright Water Limited
Financial staternents for the year ended 31 December 2024

Consolidated statement of cash flows (continued)
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Note 2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
Analysis of the balances of cash and
cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial
position 22 1,847,805 1,881,401
Less: Restricted bank balances 22 (19,377) (19,494)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of cash flows 1,828,428 1,861,907

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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China Everbright Water Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 December 2024

Corporate information

China Everbright Water Limited (“the Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda and is dual primary listed on the Mainboard of the Singapore Exchange Securities
Trading Limited and the Mainboard of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
registered address of the Company is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda and its principal place of business is located at 26th Floor, Block A, Oriental Xintiandi
Plaza, No. 1003 Shennan Avenue, Futian District, Shenzhen, PRC 518000.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Company’s subsidiaries are
primarily involved in the water environment management business in the PRC.

The immediate holding company of the Company is China Everbright Water Holdings Limited,
a limited liability company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"). In the opinion of
the directors, the ultimate holding entity of the Company is China Investment Corporation, an
entity established in the PRC.

As at the date of this report, the Company had direct and indirect interests in the following
major subsidiaries, the particulars of which are set out below:

Place and date of

incorporation/ issued ordinary
registration and  sharefregistered Percentage of equity altributable to the
Name place of buginess share capital Campany Principal activities
Direct Indirect
Everbright Industrial Waste Water PRC/Mainland
Treatment Nanjing China RMB Waste water
Limited# 2 September 2016 507,000,000 - 100 treatment
Construction and
operation of
PRC/Mainland wetland ecological
China RMB engineering
Everbright Water (Tongxiang) Limited* 31 July 2019 270,000,000 - 79.9 project
Sponge city
construction,
operation and
PRC/Mainland research and
Everbright Sponge City Development China RMB development
(Zhenjiang) Limited® 1 June 2018 462,000,000 70 - {"R&D")
PRC/Mainland
China
26 December RMB Waste water
Everbright Water (Jiangyin) Limited* 2007 278,877,000 - 70 treatment
PRC/Mainland
China
26 November RMB Wasle water
Everbright Water {Ji'man Licheny) Limited™” 2008 386,848,000 100 treatment
PRCMainland
China uss Waste water
Everbright Water (JI'nhan} Limited® 10 October 2006 108,246,600 100 treatment
PRC/Maintand
China
Everbright Water (Nanning) Limited* ("EB 30 Seplamber RMBE 79.65 River restoration
Water Nanning") 2017 488,690,000 note (2) - works
PRC/Mainland
Everbrright Water (Qingdao) Limited ("EB China Uss 60 Waste water
Water Qingdao™) # 13 August 2004 89,561,700 - note (3} treatment
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Corporate information (continued)

Place and date of

China Everbright Water Limited

Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

incarporation/ fssued ordinary
regisfration and  sharefregistered Percentage of equily afiributable fo the
Name place of business share capital Company Principal activities
Direct Indirect

PRC/Mainland

China HKS Waste waler

Everbright Water (Suzhou) Limited* 3 July 2008 258,000,000 - 100 freatment
PRC{Mainland

China RMB Waste water

Everbright Water (Xianyang) Limited* 19 May 2003 94,000,000 - 100 freatment
PRC/Mainland
China

15 November uss Waste water

Everbright Water (Zibo) Limited* 2005 85,666,900 - 100 treatment
PRC/Mainland

Tianjin Binhai New Area Huantang Sewage China RMB Waste water

Treatment Co., Ltd.® 1 April 2010 10,000,000 65 treatment
PRC/Mainland

China RMB Waste water

EW Water (Anyang} Co., Ltd.* 17 June 2024 220,995,600 99 treatment
PRC/Mainland

Ji'man Start-up Zone EW Waste Water China RMB Waste water

Treatment Co., Ltd.* 8 February 2023 104,550,000 0.1 84.9 tfreatment
PRC/Mainland

EW Water (Liaocheng Shen County) Co., China RMB Waste water

Lid.* 20 February 2023 220,000,000 - 98 treatment

A Registered under the laws of the PRC as private companies with limited liability

*

#

Registered under the laws of the PRC as foreign investment enterprises
Registered under the laws of the PRC as sino-foreign cooperative joint ventures

Notes:

(1)

2

The financial information of all significant subsidiaries (if any) are audited by member
firm of KPMG in China for group consolidation purpose. For this purpose, a subsidiary
or an associated company is considered significant, as defined under the Listing Manual
of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited, if its net tangible assets represent
20% or more of the Group’s consolidated net tangible assets, or if its pre-tax profits
account for 20% or more of the Group's consolidated pre-tax profits. For the avoidance
of doubt, the Group did not have any subsidiaries and associated company which was
considered significant for the year ended 31 December 2024.

The Company is committed to contributing 79.6474% of EB Water Nanning's registered
capital. The remaining 20.3526% registered capital is contributed by three PRC joint
venture partners. Except for one of the PRC joint venture partners, who is committed {o
contributing 12.3742% of registered capital and shall not he entitled to the net profit of
EB Water Nanning, the Company and other two PRC joint venture partners share the
net profit of EB Water Nanning on the basis of their respective proportions of actual
contribution.
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China Everbright Water Limited
Financial stafements for the year ended 31 December 2024

Corporate information {continued)

(3) EW/(Qingdao) Holdings, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the foreign joint
venture partner of EB Water Qingdao, is committed to contributing 60% of EB Water
Qingdao’s registered capital. The remaining 40% registered capital is coniributed by a
PRC joint venture partner. EW (Qingdao) Holdings is fully entitled to the net profit of EB
Water Qingdao’s certain project for the first 14 years of the joint venture period. From
the 15th year of the joint venture period onwards, the net profit of EB Water Qingdao’s
certain project is to be shared by EW (Qingdao) Holdings and the PRC joint venture
partner on a 98:2 basis.

(4) Certain subsidiaries of the Group entered into service concession arrangements with the
local government authorities in the PRC (the “Grantors”). Pursuant to the service
concession arrangements, the Group was granted rights to construct, operate and
maintain waste water treatment and other environmental protection related projects in
the PRC for a period of 14 to 30 years. The Group has the obligation to maintain and
restore the relevant projects in good condition. The service fees are based on the extent
of services rendered and are subject to approvals from the relevant local government
authorities. Upon expiry of the concession periods, the relevant projects and facilities
will be transferred to the local government authorities.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal options. Both the Grantors
and the Group have the rights to terminate the agreements in the event of a material
breach of the terms of the agreements.

Operating rights of the waste water treatment and other environmental protection related
projects are recognised as “Intangible assets” in the statements of financial position.

(5) Certain subsidiaries of the Group entered into service concession arrangements with the
Grantors. Pursuant {o the service concession arrangements, the Group has to design,
construct and/or upgrade, operate and maintain waste water treatment and other
environmental protection related projects in the PRC for a period of 8 to 41 years. The
Group has the obligation to maintain the relevant projects in good condition. The
Grantors guarantee the Group will receive minimum annual payments in connection with
the arrangements. Upon expiry of the concession periods, the relevant projects and
facilities will be transferred to the local government authorities.

The service concession arrangements do not contain renewal options. The standard rights
of the Grantors to terminate the agreements include the failure of the Group to construct,
upgrade or operate the relevant projects and in the event of a material breach of the terms
of the agreements. The standard rights of the Group to terminate the agreements include
failure to receive payments for waste water treatment service from the Grantors and in the
event of a material breach of the terms of the agreements.

Revenue relates to the construction services provided in constructing or upgrading the waste

water treatment and other environmental protection related projects is recognised as “Contract
assets” in the statements of financial position.
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2.2

2.3

China Everbright Water Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRS
Accounting Standards ("HKFRSs"), which comprise all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA”}.

Basis of presentation

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases.

Intra-group balances and fransactions, and any unrealised income and expenses (except for
foreign currency transaction gains or losses) arising from intra-group transactions, are
eliminated. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements are not statutory financial statements and are prepared solely, at
the request of management, for the purpose of issuance of corporate bonds or notes to
institutional investors in the national inter-bank bond market of the PRC.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with HKFRS
Accounting Standards, which comprise all standards and interpretations approved by the
HKICPA. These financial staiements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (*HK$”) and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated. All HKFRS Accounting
Standards effective for the accounting period commencing from 1 January 2024, together with
the relevant transitional provisions are as follows, have been consistently applied by the Group
in the preparation of the financial statements throughout the financial periods:

« Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
« Amendments to HKAS 1, Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

s Amendments to HKFRS 16, Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

e Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7, Supplier Finance Arrangements

The application of these amendments to accounting standards and interpretations does not
have a material effect on the Group’s consclidated financial statements.
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2.4

China Everbright Water Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

Issued but not yet effective HKFRS Accounting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and amended HKFRS Accounting Standards,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in this financial statemenis.

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or

after
Amendments to HKAS 21, Lack of Exchangeability 1 January 2025
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7, Contracts Referencing 1 January 2026
Nature-dependent Electricity
Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7, Amendments to the 1 January 2026
Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments
Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting Standards — Volume 1 January 2026
11, Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 8, HKFRS 10
and HKAS 7
HKFRS 18, Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements 1 January 2027
HKFRS 19, Subsidiaries without Fublic Accountability: Disclosures 1 January 2027
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or Contribution of Note 1

Assels between an Investor and its Associate or Joint venture

Note 1: The effective date for these amendments was deferred indefinitely. Early adoption
continues fo be permitted.
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China Everbright Waler Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 371 December 2024

2.5 Material accounting policy information
Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Controi is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).
When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar rights
of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether
it has power over an investee, including:
{a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
{b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.
The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s profit or loss to the extent of
dividends received and receivable. The Company's invesiments in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less any impairment losses.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the Company has significant influence, but not
control or joint control, over the financial and operating policies.

The Group’s investment in an associate is stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the Group's share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income of an
associate is included in consolidated statement of comprehensive income. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group
recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associate are eliminated fo the extent of the Group’s investment in the associate, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of associates is included as part of the Group’s investment in
associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for
under the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the
associate, the Group measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence and
the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or
loss.
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China Everbright Waler Limited
Financial sfatements for the year ended 31 December 2024

2.5 Material accounting policy information {(continued)

Service concession arrangements

The Group has entered into a number of service concession arrangements with the Grantors.
Under these service concession arrangements:

» the Grantors control or regulate the services the Group must provide with the mfrastructure
to whom it must provide them, and at what price; and

+ the Grantors control, through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise, any significant
residual interest in the infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement, or the
infrastructure is used for its entire useful life under the arrangements, or both the Group’s
practical ability to sell or pledge the infrastructure is restricted and continuing right of use of
the infrastructure is given to the Grantors throughout the period of the arrangements.
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China Everbright Waler Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

2.5 Material accounting policy information (continued)
Consideration given by the grantor

A financial asset (receivable under service concession arrangement) is recognised to the

extent that the Group has an unconditional right to receive cash or another financial asset from

or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services rendered and/or the consideration

paid and payable by the Group for the right to manage and operate the infrastructure for public
service. The Group has an unconditional right to receive cash if the grantor contractually

guarantees to pay the Group (a) specified or determinable amounts or (b) the shorifall, if any,

between amounts received from users of the public service and specified or determinable

amounts, even if the payment is contingent on the Group ensuring that the infrastructure meets

specified requirements. The financial asset (receivable under service concession arrangement)
is accounted for in accordance with the policy set out for "Financial instruments” below.

The intangible asset, which represents a right to charge users of the public service during
period of operation, is measured based on the total transaction price for the construction
service. The intangible asset (operating concession) is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment loss. Amortisation is provided on a straight-line
basis over the operation phase of the concession periods.

If the Group is paid for the construction services partly by a financial asset and partly by an
intangible asset, then each component of the consideration is accounted for separately and is
recognised initially at the fair value of the consideration.

Construction of service concession refated infrastructure

Revenue relating to construction services is accounted for in accordance with the policy for
‘Revenue recognition” below.

Operating services

Revenue relating to operating services is accounted for in accordance with the policy for
“Revenue recognition” below.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.
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China Everbright Waler Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

2.5 Material accounting policy information (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable, either direcily or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
reguired (other than inventories, construction contract assets, financial assets and deferred tax
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. [n assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether there is an indication
that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/famortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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China Everbright Water Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

2.5 Material accounting policy information (continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related o the Group if:
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person's family and that person
(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i has significant influence over the Group; or
(iiiy is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;
or
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(ii)y the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of
the third entity;

(v} the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

{vii) a person identified in (a)(i} has significant influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

{viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been put into operation,
such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it
is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates
them accordingly.
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China Everbright Waler Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

2.5 Material accounting policy information (continued) :

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of each item of property,
plant and equipment fo its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

" Buildings 2.5% to 4%
Plant and machinery 2.5% to 20%
Leasehold improvements, furniture and fixtures 20% to 25%
Mator vehicles and office equipment 12.5% to 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred to the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group from the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed
for appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity interest is

remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or joss.
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China Everbright Water Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

2.5 Material accounting policy information {continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than
the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of
the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities
of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Intangible assets {other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at each financial year end.
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2.5 Material accounting policy information (continued)

The following intangible assets are amortised from the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

Concession rights 14 to 30 years
Patents and trademarks 10 to 20 years
Computer software 5 years
Customer relationships 5 years

The useful iife of the patents and trademarks of the Group is determined based on the shorter
of their statutory validity periods and the expected benefit periods.

The useful life of the customer relationships of the Group is determined based on the expected
benefit periods with reference to the historical customer attrition rate.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in
profit or loss in the year the intangible assets is derecognised is the difference between the net
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant intangible asset.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or Ioss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new water environment technologies is capitalised
and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the availability
of resources to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Water environment technologies development expenditure which does not
meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

()  Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at

amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (OCl), and fair value
through profit or loss.
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2.5 Material accounting policy information (continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient are measured at the transaction price.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value
through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and
interest’ on the principal amount ouistanding.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its
financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as
follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the following conditions
are met:

- The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective

interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the
income statement when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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2.5 Material accounting policy information (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for
trading, financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or
loss, or financial assets mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of principal
and interest are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective
of the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified
at amortised cost, as described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces,
an accounting mismatch.

This category includes equity investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through OCI. Dividends on equity investments are recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established.

Derecognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,, removed from the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

- the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to
a third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset,
the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is

measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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(i)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and borrowings or
payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include creditors, other payables and accrued expenses,
and interest-bearing borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the income statement when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amonrtisation is
included in finance costs in the profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled, or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respeclive carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

HKFRS 9 requires the Group to record an allowance for expected credit losses("ECL") for all
loans and other debt financial assets not held at FVTPL using a forward-looking ECL approach.

The ECL allowance is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive. The
shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to the asset’s original effective interest rate
(GIE’R”). N

For contract assets and trade receivables, the Group has applied the standard’s simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime expected credit losses. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on the Group’s historical repayment and loss
patterns for different groups of the customers, and ageing of trade receivables.
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Other receivables are assessed for impairment based on 12-month expected credit losses: 12-
month ECLs are the portion of lifetime ECLs that result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the asset is
less than 12 months). However, when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the lifetime ECL.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past
due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
cutstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group.

QOffsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
statement of financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories, mainly comprise raw materials and consumables used in the repairs and
maintenance of the waste water ireatment plants, are siated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal. When inventories are consumed, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and short-term deposits that are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Group in the
management of its short-term commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, restricted bank balances are
excluded from cash and cash equivalent.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a
result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounied present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in profit or loss. '
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Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items recognised outside
profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the end of
the reporting period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all {axable temporary differences, except:

+ when the deferred tax liability arises from the initiai recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

* in respect of t.axable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
an associate, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlied
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

» when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

* in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and an associate, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to

the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income tax levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be setiled or recovered.

Govemment grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant
relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income account
and is released to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and released to profit or
loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

(i) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer
and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Group recognises
revenue when it transfers control over a produict or service to a customer.

The Group has satisfied a performance obligation and recognises revenue over time, if
one of the foilowing criteria is met:

(a) The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Group’s performance as the Group performs

(b) The Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the asset is created or enhanced

(c) The Group’s performance does nof create an asset with an alternate use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date

" If none of the above conditions are met, the Group récognises revenue at the point in
time at which the performance obligation is satisfied.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is recognised over the peried of the
contract by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the asset.
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The progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation is measured
based on the Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the performance obligation,
by reference to the surveyors’ assessment of work performed and the costs incurred up
to the end of reporting period as a percentage of total estimated costs for each contract.

When the Group provides more than one service in a service concession arrangement,
the transaction price will be allocated to each performance obligation by reference to
their relative stand-alone selling prices. If the stand-alone selling prices are not directly
observable, they are estimated based on expected cost plus a margin or adjusted market
assessment approach, depending on the availability of observable information.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised amount of
consideration for the effect of a financing component if it is significant.

Construction service revenue

The Group's performance in respect of construction services creates or enhances an
asset or work in progress that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced,
thus the Group satisfies a performance obligation and recognises revenue from
construction service over time, by reference to completion of the specific transaction
assessed on the basis of the surveyors’ assessment of work performed and the costs
incurred up to the end of the reporting period as a percentage of total estimated costs
for each contract.

Revenue from the construction services under a service concession agreement is
estimated on a cost-plus basis with reference to a prevailing market rate of gross margin
at the date of the agreement applicable to similar construction services rendered.

Operation revenue

The Group recognises revenue from environmental water project operation services
when the related services are rendered. The operation revenue from reusable water
supply service is recognised at a point in time when the Group has delivered water to the
customer; the customer has accepted the water; the Group has the present right fo
payment and the collection of the consideration is probable. The other operation revenue
from service concession arrangements is recognised over the period of time that the
services are rendered and the benefits are received and consumed simultaneously by
the customers.

Sales of machineries

"Revenue from the sales of machineries is recognised at the point in time when control of
the asset is transferred to the customer, generally when the customer obtains the
physical possession or the legal title of the compieted productis and the Group has
present right to payment and the collection of the consideration is probable.
Technical service income

Revenue from the technical service income services is recognised over time, by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation.
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(i) Revenue from other sources
Finance income
Finance income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by
applying the rate that exacily discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net

carrying amount of the financial asset.

Contract assets and contract liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the Group obtains rights to receive consideration
from the customer and assumes performance obligations to transfer goods or provide services
to the customer. The combination of those rights and performance obligations gives rise to a
net asset or a net liability depending on the relationship between the remaining rights and the
performance obligations. The contract is an asset and recognised as contract assets if the
measure of the remaining rights exceeds the measure of the remaining performance
obligation. Conversely, the contract is a liability and recognised as contract liabilities if the
measure of the remaining performance obligations exceeds the measure of the remaining
rights.

The Group recognises the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer within
contract assets if the Group expects toc recover those costs.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of
such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company is RMB. This financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the Company’s presentation currency. The Company has
used Hong Kong dollars as its presentation currency to be consistent with that of China
Everbright Water Holdings Limited, the immediate holding company of the Company. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.
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Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or
loss with the exception of monetary items that are designated as part of the hedge of the
Group's net investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive
income until the net investment is disposed of, at which time the cumulative amount is
reclassified to profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on
those monetary items are also recorded in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on change in fair value of the item.

The functional currencies of the Company, certain overseas subsidiaries and an associate are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporiing period and their statements of comprehensive income are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of
other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in profit
or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash flows of the Company,
certain overseas subsidiaries and an associate are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of these
entities which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, and assets at the end of
each reporting period. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the
following judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Service concession arrangements

The Group entered into Build-Operate-Transfer (‘“BOT"), Transfer-Operate-Transfer (“TOT")
and Build- Own-Operate ("BOQ") arrangements in respect of its environmental water projects.

The Group has concluded that all the BOT and TOT arrangemenis and certain BOO
arrangements are service concession arrangementis under IFRIC 12 Service Concession
Arrangements, because the local government controls and regulates the services that the
Group must provide with the infrastructure at a pre-determined service charge. In respect of
BOT and TOT arrangements, upon expiry of concession right agreements, the infrastructure
has to be transferred to the local government at nil consideration. Infrastructure for BOO
arrangements is used in the service concession arrangements for its entire or substantially
entire usefui life.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.
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Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables

The Group estimates the expected loss allowances for trade receivables by assessing the
ECLs. This requires the use of estimates and judgements. ECLs are based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors. The
Group’s historical credit loss experience may also not be representative of customer’s actual
default in the future. At each reporting date, historical credit loss rates are updated.

Revenue recognition for construction work

The Group recognises contract revenue over time by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation at the reporting date. The progress is
measured based on the Group’s effort or inputs to the satisfaction of the performance
obligation, by reference to the surveyors’ assessment of work performed and the costs incurred
up to the end of the reporting period as a percentage of total estimated costs for each
performance obligation in the contract. Significant assumptions are required to estimate the
completion progress of the performance obligation. The Group reviews and revises the
estimates in each construction contract as the contract progresses.

Impairment losses for goodwill

As explained in the accounting policy set out in note 2.5 for “Business combinations and
goodwill”, goodwill is allocated to a cash-generating unit or to a group of cash-generating units
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination for the purpose of
impairment assessment, which requires significant judgement. The Group determined that the
group of cash-generating units to which goodwill was allocated reflected the lowest level at
which goodwill was monitored for internal reporting and was not larger than an operating
segment in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets. '

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual basis. This involves
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the gocdwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and a suitable discount rate in order fo calculate the
present value. The carrying amount of goodwill at the reporting date is disclosed in note 15.

Operating segment information

Operating segments are identified based on the internal reports about components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the Company’s management (the “Management”) and
the Board for the purpose of resource allocation and performance assessment.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well
as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. The Group operates in a single business
segment which is the water environment management business. No operating segments have
been aggregated to form the following reportable operating segment.
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Business segment

The Group had only one operating segment for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023:

one), namely the water environment management business, the details of which are set out

below:

» Water environment management - Engagement in municipal waste water treatment,
industrial waste water treatment, water supply, reusable water, sludge treatment and
disposal, sponge city construction, river-basin ecological restoration, livestock and poultry
manure resource utilisation, leachate treatment, research and development ("“R&D") of
water environment technologies and engineering construction.

Geographical information

Revenue from external customers

Year ended 31 December

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

Mainland China 6,833,305 6,653,554
Germany 18,613 51,130
6,851,918 6,704,684

The revenue information of continuing operations above is based on the locations at which the
services were provided.

Non-current assets

As at 31 December

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

Mainland China 25,884,707 24,611,079
Hong Kong 959 3,164
Singapore 583 2,753
Germany 130 171
Mauritius 1,803 1,262
25,888,282 24,618,429

The above table sets out information about the geographical location of the Group’s total non-
current assets excludes deferred tax assets (“specified non-current assets”). The geographical
location of the specified non-current assets is based on the physical location of the asset, in
the case of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and investment properties, the
location of the operation to which they are allocated, in the case of intangible assets, goodwill,
contract assets and other receivables, and the location of operations, in the case of interests
in associates and joint venture.
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Major customers

Customer 1**
Customer 2**
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Year ended 31 December

2024
HK$'000

941,466
846,890

2023
HK$'000

N/A*
875,462

*  The corresponding revenue from this customer is not disclosed as such revenue alone did

not account for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.

** The customers are local government authorities.

Revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers

Construction service revenue from service
concession arrangements

Operation income from service concession
arrangements

Sales of machineries and technical service income

Revenue from other sources

Finance income from service concessicn
arrangements
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Year ended 31 December

2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$000
2,646,208 2,066,019
2,820,981 3,104,693
287,628 436,790
5,754,907 5,607,502
1,097,011 1,097,182
6,851,918 6,704,684
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Revenue (continued)

Year ended 31 December

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
Timing of revenue recognition:

At a point in time 238,075 384,516
Over time 5,516,832 5,222,986
5,754,907 5,607,502

Finance income from service concession
arrangements 1,087,011 1,097,182
6,851,918 6,704,684

The aggregated amount of construction service revenue, finance income and operation income
from service concession arrangements are derived from the local government authorities in
the PRC amounted to HK$6,427,112,000 for the year ended 31 December 2024
(2023:HK$6,179,504,000). Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from these customers
are set out in note 36.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, revenue reversal of HK$75,192,000 (2023: revenue
recognition of HK$155,895,000) was related to performance obligations satisfied in previous
periods, due to a change in an estimate of the transaction price.

The amounts of fransaction prices allocated to the remaining performance obligations
(unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December are as follows:

As at 31 December

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
Unsatisfied performance obligations related to
service concession arrangements:
Expected to be recognised within one year 3,792,591 3,271,166
Expected to be recognised after one year ‘ 42 052 157 44 135,038
Total transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied
performance obligations 45,844,748 47,406,204
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Year ended 31 December

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

Government grants™® 32,442 30,640

Value-added tax (“VAT") refunds** 2,643 21,786
Fair value gains/(losses), net:

Other financial assets - unlisted investments 7,036 (31,218)

Other financial assets - unlisted equity investment 464 (1,586)

Sundry income 22,602 26,385

65,187 46,007

* Government grants of HK$32,442,000 were granted during the year ended 31 December
2024 (2023: HK$30,640,000), to subsidise certain waste water treatment plants of the
Group in the PRC. The receipt of such grants is unconditional. There is no assurance that
the Group will continue to receive such grants in the future.

** VAT refunds of HK$2,643,000 were receivedfreceivable during the year ended 31
December 2024 (2023: HK$21,786,000), in relation to certain of the Group’s waste water
treatment and reusable water projecis in operation in the PRC. The receipt of such tax
refunds is unconditional. There is no assurance that the Group will continue to receive such

tax refunds in the future.

Net finance costs

Finance income
Interest income on:
Bank deposits
Amounts due from an associate

Finance costs

Interest expense on:
Bank and other loans
Corporate bonds, ABS, MTN and SCP
Lease liabilities

Net finance costs

Year ended 31 December

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

13,204 26,306

325 352
23929 26,658
(302,677) (368,128)
(238,018) (222,440)

- (381) (353)

____________ (541,076) _______(590,921)
(527,547) (564,263)

44



China Everbright Water Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

Profit before tax

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Year ended 31 December

2024 2023
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Depreciation (note (i)
- property, plant and equipment 12 50,502 51,771
- right-of-use assets 13(a) 10,873 10,055
Amortisation '
- intangible assets (note (i)) 14 148,744 150,641
Loss/(gain) on disposals of property, plant
and equipment 630 (19)
Loss on disposal of intangible assets - 2,853
Cost of construction services from service
concession arrangements (note (ii)) 2,194,521 1,629,194
R&D costs {note (iii)) 50,080 52,538
Rental expenses from short-term leases 1,562 1,258
Allowance for expected credit losses on
trade receivables, net 20 164,170 164,487
Allowance for expected credit losses on
other receivables, net 20 20,523 466
Allowance for expected credit losses on
contract assets 18 1,623 1,282
Foreign exchange differences, net (14,093) (67,813)
Employee benefit expenses (note (iv)):
Wages, salaries, allowances and benefits
in kind 444 290 492 614
Retirement scheme contributions {note (v)) 47,689 59,154
491,979 551,768

(i)

(i)

(iv)

Amortisation of intangible assets, and depreciation of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets in a total of HK$195,477,000 during the year ended 31 December
2024 (2023: HK$194,873,000) are included in “Direct costs and operating expenses” in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

included in “Direct costs and operating expenses” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. ‘

R&D costs include HK$44,927 000 (2023: HK$48,697,000) related to the cost of
inventories consumed, employee benefit expenses, and depreciation expenses. These
expenses are either included in the respective expense categories separately disclosed
above or in note 19.

Employee benefit expenses include employee benefit expenses in cost of construction
services and employee benefit expenses in R&D costs.
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Profit before tax {continued)

(v} There were no forfeitures of contributions to retirement schemes in 2024 and 2023 that
could be used to reduce future contributions to the retirement schemes.

Income tax expense

No provision for Singapore and Hong Kong income tax was made as the Group did not earn
any income subject to Singapore or Hong Kong income tax during the year ended 31
December 2024 (2023 Nil).

In 2021, the Organisation for Economic Co-cperation and Development published the Global
Anti-Base Erosion Model Rules ("Pillar Two medel rules”) for a new global minimum tax reform
applicable to large multinational enterprises. Certain jurisdictions in which the Group operates
are in the process of implementing their Pillar Two income tax legislation. Therefore, it is
possible that the Group may be subject to additional Pillar Two income taxes in those
jurisdictions. In 2024 the Hong Kong SAR Government amended the Inland Revenue
Ordinance to introduce a domestic minimum top-up tax which will take effect from the year
ended 31 December 2025. Under the management assessment, there may not be significant
impact to the Group.

Tax for the PRC operations is charged at the statutory rate of 25% based on the assessable
profits in accordance with the tax rules and regulations in the PRC. Certain PRC subsidiaries
of the Group were subject to a preferential tax rate of 15% pursuant to the relevant tax rules
and regulations, and certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group were subject to tax at half of the
foregoing statutory rate or fully exempted from income tax pursuant to the relevant tax rules
and regulations.

Year ended 31 December

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000

Current - PRC:
Charge for the year (note 26) 257,271 260,619
(Over)lunder-provision in prior years (note 26) (5,850) 7,066
Deferred (note 26) 67,645 137,225
Total tax expense for the year 319,066 404,910
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Income tax expense (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the statutory rate for the
country in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax
expense at the effective tax rates is as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
Profit before tax 1,446,060 1,666,123
Tax calculated at tax rate of 25% (2023: 25%) 361,515 416,531
Tax concession (196,923} (222,487)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of previous
periods (5,850) 7,066
Losses/(profits) attributable to associates and a
joint venture 1,621 (817)
[ncome not subject to tax (9,422) (37,471)
Expenses not deductible for tax 51,652 181,186
Tax losses not recognised 49,438 11,017
Tax losses utilised from previous periods (10,701) {(6,015)
Effect of withholding tax on the distributable profits
of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries 77,736 55,900
Tax expense at the Group’s effeclive rate 319,066 404 910
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: China Everbright Water Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

Dividends
Year ended 31 December
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
Dividends for the financial year:
Interim - HK6.09 cents (equivalent to 1.05
Singapore cents (“Sing cent(s)”)) (FY2023:
HKB.63 cents (equivalent to 1.13 Sing cents)) per
ordinary share 175,092 189,901
Proposed final - HK5.81 cents (equivalent to 1.02
Sing cents) (FY2023: HK5.81 cents (equivalent to
0.99 Sing cent)) per ordinary share 166,217 166,323
341,309 356,224
Final dividend for the previous financial year which
was paid during the financial year - HK5.81cents
(equivalent to 0.99 Sing cent) (FY2023: HK5.14
cents (equivalent to 0.86 Sing cent)) per ordinary
share 165,424 146,390

The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2024 is subject to the approval
of the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting. The final dividend proposed
after the end of the reporting period has not been recognised as a liahility at the end of the

reporting period.

Earnings per share

The calculation of the basic eamings per share is based on the Group’s profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company for the year divided by the weighted average number of ordinary

shares of the Company in issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Year ended 31 December

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
for the year 1,019,609 1,187,412
‘000 ‘000

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in

issue during the year 2,860,877 2,860,877
HK cents HK cents
Basic and diluted eamnings per share 35.64 41.51
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Property, plant and equipment

31 December 2024

Cost:

At 1 January 2024
Additions

Transfer from CIP
Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2024

Accumulated depreciation:

At 1 January 2024

Charge for the year
Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2024

Net carrying amount:

At 31 December 2024

31 December 2023

Cost:

At 1 January 2023
Additions

Transfer frem CIP
Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2023

Accumulated depreclation:

At 1 January 2023
Charge for the year
Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2023

Net carrying amount:

At 31 December 2023

China Everbright Water Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

Leasehold Motor
improvements, vehicles Construction
Plant and furniture and and office in progress

Buildings machinery fixfures equipment (“CIP") Total
HK$'C00 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
666,523 417,841 19,045 107,697 12,547 1,223,653
- 439 1,383 7.531 76,556 §5,909
18,236 81,577 - 2,459 {82,272) -
- {403} (1386) (7,640) - (8,179}
(10,867) {7.475) (283) (1,751) (128) (20,504)
....... 673802 ... 471979, . ......20008 108296 G703 ____ 1280879
93,918 73,876 12,204 72,882 - 252,990
20,529 17,782 1,643 10,548 - 50,502
- (403) (110) (6,722) - {7,235)
(1,7386) {1,404) (178) {1,218) - {4.534)
_______ 192711, .. 89851 _ 13859 75802 __ . .- ... 291723
561,181 382,128 6,450 32,694 5,703 988,156

Leasehold Motor

improvements, vehicles

Piant and furniture and and office
Buildings machinery fixturas equipment ciP Total
HK$'000 HK$'0o0 HK$'coo HK$'000 HKs'000 HK$000
859,601 336,734 17,889 109,397 83,945 1,207,338
- 1,189 1,965 6,094 44,831 54,079
24,762 90,386 - 40 {i15,188) -
- (9) {142} (4,959) - (5,110)
{17.840) {10,459) {437} (2.875) (1.041) (32,652)
e B85 CAEA TS R 19048 . 107897, ______. 12847 L. 1223,653
75,489 57,267 11,401 68,220 - 212,386
20,729 18,439 1,203 11,400 - 51,771
- {4) (142) {4,750} - (4,856)
(2,300) {1,826) (258) {1,887} - (6,271)
S 1) L 3876 . 12204 . 2882 . ... 252,860
572,608 343,965 6,841 34,705 12,547 970,663

The property ownership certificates of certain buildings of the Group in the PRC/Mainland
China (the “Buildings™ with aggregate net carrying amounis of HK$13,409,000 as at 31
December 2024 (31 December 2023: HK$14,880,000), have not yet been issued by the
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, pursuant to the
relevant agreements signed with the local government authorities in the PRC/Mainland China
and based on the advice from the Company's PRC legal adviser, Zhong Lun Law Firm, the
Group has the proper legal rights to occupy and use the Buildings.

relevant PRC authorities.
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(a)

(b)

China Everbright Water Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

Leases
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of land and buildings, equipment and others
used in its operation. Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the land lease from
the owners with [ease periods of forty years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the
terms of these land leases. Lease of buildings, vehicle and others generally have lease terms
between one and three years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing
the leased assets outside the Group.

Right-of-use assets

The carrying amount of the Group’s right-of-use assets and movements during the year are as
follows:

Prepaid

land lease
payments Buildings Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
As at 1 January 2023 86,815 3,020 89,835
Additions - 11,003 11,003
Disposals - (8,331) (8,331)
Depreciation charge (2,874) (7,181) (10,055)
Depreciation reductions due to expiration - 8,331 8,331
Exchange realignment (2,251) (32) (2,283)
As at 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 81,690 6,810 88,500
Additions - 5,998 5,998
Disposals - (2,854) (2,854)
Depreciation charge - (2,818) (8,057} (10,873)
Depreciation reductions due to expiration - 2,854 2,854
Exchange realignment (1,269) (46} {1,315)
As at 31 December 2024 77,605 4,705 82,310

Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of the Group’s lease liabilities and movements during the year are as
follows:

As at 31 December

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

Carrying amount at 1 January 6,855 3,007
New leases 5,998 11,003
Accretion of interest recognised during the year 381 353
Payments (8,474) (7,485)
Exchange realignment (32) (23)
Carrying amount at 31 December 4,728 6,855
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(c)

(d)

China Everbright Water Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

Leases (continued)

The current portion and non-current portion of the carrying amount of the Group’s lease
liabilities are as follows:

As at 31 December

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

Current partion 3,341 5412
Non-current portion 1,387 1,443
Total carrying amount at 31 December 4,728 6,855

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as below:

Year ended 31 December

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

Interest expense on lease liabilities (note 7) 381 353
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets (note 8) 10,873 10,055
Expense relating to short-term leases 1,562 1,258
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 12,816 11,666

The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 30(c).
The Group as a lessor

The Group leases one of its investment properties, consisting of one commercial investment
property in PRC. The shop had been rented out for a period of 6 years from 1 November 2019
under operating lease arrangements. The terms of the lease generally require the tenant to
pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the prevailing
market conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was HK$162,000
(2023: HK$162,000).

The undiscounted lease payments receivables by the Group in future pericds under non-
cancellable operating lease with its tenant are as follows:

As at 31 December

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$000

Within 1 year 71 162
After 1 year but within 5 years - 73
71 235
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Intangible assets

31 December 2024

Cost:
At 1 January 2024
Additions
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2024
Accumulated amortisation:
At 1 January 2024
Amortisation provided during the year
Exchange realignment
At 31 Decamber 2024
Accumulated impairment
At 1 January 2024
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2024

Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2024

At 1 January 2024

31 December 2023

Cost:
At 1 January 2023
Additions
Disposals
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2023
Accurnulated amortisation:
At 1 January 2023
Amortisation provided during the year
Exchange realignment
At 31 December 2023
Accumulated impairment
At 1 January 2023
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2023

Net carrying amount:
At 31 December 2023

At 1 January 2023

China Everbright Water Limnited

Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

Concession Fatents and Computer Customer
rights trademarks software relationships Total
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2,849,036 23,690 11,655 12,114 2,896,495
345,371 - 1,228 - 346,599
{49,999) {379) (202) (184) (50,774)
_______ 344408 ..2@300 ... 2881 AM.e20 3,192,320
685,243 23,690 6,209 12,114 727,256
147,170 - 1,674 - 148,744
(14,574) (379) (119) (194) (15,266}
IR L2 < -, 23810 Ll 7664 _______ 11820 . 860,734,
13,213 - - - 13,213
211) - - - (211)
__________ 13002 Lt T oo 13002
2,313,667 - 5,017 - 2,318,584
2,150,580 - 5,446 - 2,156,026
Concession Patents and Computer Customer
rights trademarks software relationships Tofal
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2,929,442 24,335 10,321 12,444 2,978,542
- - 1,636 - 1,636
(2,852} - (1) - (2,853)
(77,554 (645) {301) (330) (78,830)
_______ 284p036 23880 mess 12114 2898495
552,584 24,335 4,987 11,200 593,106
148,032 - 1,377 1,232 150,641
{15,373} (645} (155) {318) {16,481)
ceoo.. 888245 23680 __ ! 6209 _....... Jdzaa 727,256
13,573 - - - 13,673
(360) - - - {360)
__________ 13213 T i e oo 3213
2,150,580 - 5,446 - 2,156,026
2,363,285 - 5,334 1,244 2,369,863
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China Everbright Water Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

Goodwill

As at 31 December

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000

Cost and net carrying amount at the beginning of
the year 1,364,093 1,400,952
Exchange realignment (21,667) (36,859)
Cost and net carrying amount at the end of the year 1,342 426 1,364,093

Impairment testing of goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been allocated to the Group’s groups of
cash-generating units("CGUs") identified to the relevant sub-groups as at 31 December 2024
and 2023.

The recoverable amount of the CGUs as at 31 December 2024 was determined based on a
value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets using a
revenue growth rate of 3% to 10% (31 December 2023: 3% to 10%) approved by management.
The pre-tax discount rates applied to the cash flow projections were ranged from 7.5% to 9.3%
for 2024 (31 December 2023: 11.4%). Management determined the budgets based on service
concession arrangements governing the relevant operations. Management determined the
pre-tax discount rates by using the weighted average cost of capital ("WACC"), which was
calculated by referring to public market data including risk free rate, market return, beta of
comparable public companies etc. and the specific risk of the business. Based on the
assessment, no impairment provision was necessary as at 31 December 2024 (31 December
2023: Nil).

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to the pre-tax
discount rate and revenue growth rate, representing the key inputs to the determination of the
recoverable amount.

The headroom calculated based on the recoverable amounts deducting the carrying amounts
of the relevant CGUs are ranged from HK$30,464,000 to HK$949,270,000 (31 December
2023; HK$1,754,000,000).

For the sensitivity analysis of the Group conducted during the impairment review, had there
been reasonably possible changes with or an increase in pre-tax discount rate by 0.2%, or a
reduction of the revenue growth rate by 0.5%, it would cause the reduction of the recoverable
amount of the Group as follows, if one of the key assumptions was to change while other
variable held constant: as at 31 December 2024, the recoverable amount would decrease by
ranged from HK$41,996,000 to HK$431,733,000, ranged from HK$35,911,000 to
HK$423,908,000 (31 December 2023: when an increase in pre-tax discount rate by 0.2%, or
a reduction of the revenue growth rate by 1%, the recoverable amount would reduce by
HK$526,000,000 and HK$1,752,000,000).
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China Everbright Water Limited
Financiai statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

Goodwill (continued)

As disclosed above, the management has considered and assessed reasonably possible
changes for the key assumptions and has not identified any instances that would cause the
carrying amounts of above CGUs to exceed its recoverable amounts as at 31 December 2024
and 2023.

The underlying future business plans assumed in the discounted cash flows are subject to
estimation uncertainties, which may pose a significant risk of resulting in material adjustments
in future periods. Changes in the business plans and market outlook in the near term could
have a material impact on the CGUSs' financial performance.

Interests in associates
As at 31 December
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
Share of net assets 3,540 11,953

Particulars of the Group’s indirect associates during the financial year are as follows, all of
which are unlisted entities whose guoted market price is not available:

Percentage of

ownership

Place of interest
Particulars of registration affributable Principal
Name capital and business fo the Group activities

Paid up PRC/

Qingdao Haibohe Water Operating Limited capital of Mainland Waste water
(“Qingdao Halbohe™) US$350,845 China 49 freatment
Intelligent water
system
Paid up PRC/ development and
EW Data Intelligent Operation {Shenzhen) capital of Mainland Intelligent water
Limited {"EW Data Intelligent”) RMB1,000,000 China 40  project operation

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of the Group’s associates
that are not individually material;

Year ended 31 December

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
Share of the associates’ (losses)/profits for the year (7,174) 2,008
Share of the associates’ total comprehensive
income (8,413) 431
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s interests
in the associates 3,540 11,953
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China Everbright Water Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

Interest in a joint venture

As at 31 December

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
Share of net assets 1,803 1,262

Particulars of the Group’s indirect joint venture during the financial year is as follow, it is
unlisted entity whose quoted market price is not available:

Percentage of

ownership
Place of interest
Particulars of registration aftributable Principal
Name capital and business fo the Group activities
Paid up capital of
JV Sotravic — St Martin Partner Limited Mauritius Rupee Waste water
("Martin Partner™) 10,000 Mauritius 50 treatment

The following table illustrates the financial information of the Group’s joint venture that is not
individually material:

Year ended 31 December

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
Share of the joint venture's profit for the year 689 1,261
Share of the joint venture’s total comprehensive
income 641 1,261
Carrying amount of the Group’s investment in the
joint venture 1,903 1,262
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China Everbright Waler Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

As at 31 December

2024 2023
Notes HK$'000 HK$000
Non-current
Service concession assets (a) 20,900,262 19,798,284
Less: Impairment {c) {16,315) (18,573)
______ 20,883,947 . A9,779,711,
Current
Service concession assets (a) 2,063,829 2,005,427
Less: Impairment (c) (1,611) (1,881)
___________ 2,062,218 ... 2,003,546
Other contfract assets (b) 115,153 154,160
Less: Impairment {c) (3,803) -
______________ 111,350 154,160
___________ 2173568 2,157,708
Total 23,057,515 21,937 417
Notes
(@) Service concession assets of HK$22,964,091,000 as at 31 December 2024 (31

()

December 2023. HK$21,803,711,000) bear interest at rates ranging from 3.85% to
7.83% (31 December 2023: 4.20% to 7.83%) per annum. As at 31 December 2024,
balances totalling HK$20,425,618,000 (31 December 2023: HK$20,181,967,000) are
related to the service concession arrangements where operation has commenced. The
amounis are not yet due for payment and will be settled by revenue generated during
the operating periods of the service concession arrangements. Amounts billed will be
transferred to trade receivables (note 20).

As at 31 December 2024, contract assets of HK$1,217,987,000 were transferred out but
not derecognised under the Group’s asset-backed security program (note 25).

Other contract assets of HK$115,153,000 as at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023:
HK$154,160,000) comprised contract assets arising from the performance of
construction management service contracts. Such contracts include payment schedules
which require stage payments over the service periods once milestones are reached.

Impairment assessment
As at 31 December 2024, HK$21,729,000 (31 December 2023; HK$20,454,000) was

recognised as an allowance for expected credit losses on contract assets. The Group’s
trading terms and credit policy with customers are disclosed in note 20.
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Contract assets (continued)

The movements in the provision for expected credit losses of contract assets are as

follows:
As at 31 December
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
At the beginning of the year 20,454 19,716
Impairment losses recognised (note 8) 1,623 1,282
Exchange realignment (348) (544)
At the end of the year 21,729 20,454

The Group measures loss allowance for contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL'’s, which is calculated using a provision matrix. As at 31 December 2024, the
expected loss rate of service concession contract assets and other contract assets is
0.078% and 3.30%, respectively.

Inventories
As at 31 December
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
Raw materials and consumables 57,159 58,336

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense and included in profit or
loss is as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
Cost of inventories consumed 1,088,012 966,843
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20. Trade and other receivables

As at 31 December

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000

Non-current
Other receivables (i) 21,922 22,869
Less: Impairment (8,573} {9,782)
13,349 13,087
Recoverable VAT 162,952 193,824
Prepayments 79,197 28,214
242,049 222,038
eee.....255498 235,125

Current

Trade receivables (i)(iv) 6,071,978 5,060,763
Less: Impairment (778,263) (626,215)
___________ 5293715 .. 4434548
Other receivables and sundry deposits (ii)iii) 400,325 636,027
Less: Impairment (50,033) {29,187)
350,292 606,840
Recoverable VAT 100,972 121,805
Amount due from associates 15,124 6,329
Prepayments 86,563 213,239
... 992,951 948,213
___________ 5,846,666 5,382,761
Total 6,102,164 5,617,886

()  Trade receivables are due within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing.
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20. Trade and other receivables (continued)

(if)

(i)

(iv)

(v)

Included in “Other receivables and sundry deposits” as at 31 December 2024 were
HK$422 247,000 (31 December 2023: HK$658,896,000), of which HK$202,094,000 (31
December 2023: HK$205,380,000), were government compensation receivables arising
from the termination of the 13 projects of Everbright River Basin Remediation (Nanjing)
Limited. Accordingly, the impairment of HK$47,920,000 was made as at 31 December
2024 (31 December 2023: HK$12,050,000).

Included in current other receivables of HK$274,126,000 as at 31 December 2023 were
government compensation receivables arising from the disposals of service concession
arrangement-related intangible assets and contract assets in connection to relocation
and expansion of waste water treatment plants of Everbright Water (Zibo) Limited. The
amount was received in 2024,

As at 31 December 2024, frade receivables of HK$629,429,000 were transferred out but
not derecognised under the Group’s asset-backed security program {note 25).

All the current portions of the above balances are expected to be recovered or
recognised as expenses within one year.

The movements in allowance for expected credit losses on trade receivables are as follows:

As at 31 December

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

At the beginning of the year 626,215 446,835
Impairment losses recognised, net (note 8) 164,170 194,487
Exchange realignment (12,122) (15,107)
At the end of the year 778,263 626,215

The movements in allowance for expected credit losses on other receivables are as follows:

As at 31 December

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

At the beginning of the year 38,969 50,870
Impaiment losses recognised, net (note 8) 20,523 466
Write-offs - (11,200)
Exchange realignment (8886) (1,167)
At the end of the year 58,606 38,969
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Trade and other receivables (continued)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on the date of invoice (or date of revenue
recognition, if earlier} and net of allowance, as at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

As at 31 December

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

Within 1 month 557,066 1,012,238
More than 1 month but within 2 months 518,716 352,188
More than 2 months but within 4 months 625,655 556,492
More than 4 months but within 7 months 783,377 636,809
More than 7 months but within 13 months 959,159 605,792
More than 13 months 1,849,742 1,271,029
5,293,715 4,434,548

Trade receivables mainly represent revenue from the provision of operation services and the
billed amounts of the contract assets. Since most of the debtors are local government
authorities in the PRC and based on past experience, management believes that there has not
been a significant change in credit quality. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

The Group has applied the simplified approach for providing impairment for ECLs prescribed
by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade
receivables. To measure the ECLs, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The impairment as of 31 December 2024 and
2023 was determined as follows:

Past due
more than

Past due 1 year but Past due
within within over
Current 1 year 2 years 2 years Total
31 December 2024:
Expected loss rate 2.4% 3.5% 11.2% 51.7% 12.8%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 783,831 3,037,210 1,262,487 988,450 6,071,978
Impairment (HK$'000) 18,679 107,202 140,980 511,402 778,263
31 December 2023
Expected loss rate 7.5% 7.2% 17.0% 38.2% 12.4%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 1,060,050 2,518,405 945,504 536,804 5,060,763
Impairment (HK$000} 79,462 180,946 161,000 204,807 626,215

The assumptions underlying the ECL model for frade receivables are subject to estimation
uncertainties, which may pose a significant risk of resulting in material adjustments in future
periods. Changes in the economic environment, customer payment pattemns, or market
conditions in the near term could have a material impact on the accuracy of the ECL estimates
and, consequently, the carrying value of trade receivables.
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Other financial assets

As at 31 December

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

Unlisted investments, at fair value - 88,150
Unlisted equity investment, at fair value 32,928 32,998
Total 32,928 121,148

As at 31 December 2023, the above unlisted invesiments were wealth management products
issued by financial institutions in Hong Kong which were fully redeemed during the year ended
31 December 2024. The wealth management products were mandatorily classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss as their contractual cash flows were not solely
payments of principal and interest.

As at 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, the above unlisted equity investment
represents the 6% equity interest in Yancheng CCCC Shanghai Dredging Water Environment
Investment Co., Lid.

Cash and cash equivalents

As al 31 December

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

Cash on hand and bank balances 1,828,428 1,861,807
Restricted bank balances 19,377 19,494
1,847,805 1,881,401

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the restricted bank balances are deposits pledged to banks
for the issuance of guarantees by the banks to the grantors in respect of the specific
performance duties by the Group under certain service concession agreements.

Included in “Cash and cash equivalents” of the Group as at 31 December 2024 are deposits
of HK$66,990,000 (31 December 2023: HK$84,485,000) placed with a related party bank,
which is a fellow subsidiary of the Company.

As at 31 December 2024, cash and cash equivalents of the Group amounted to HK$
1,764,967 ,000 (31 December 2023: HK$1,820,452,000) are deposited with banks in the PRC.
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business. The remittance
of funds in and out of Mainland China is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC
government.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. The bank
balances are deposited with banks with no recent history of default.
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23.

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

China Everbright Waler Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, cash at banks of the Group were considered to be of low
credit risk, and thus the Group has assessed that the ECL for cash at banks is immaterial

under the 12-month expected losses method.

Trade and other payables

Non-current
Deferred government grants

Current

Trade payables (i)

Distribution payable to holders of perpetual capital
instruments

Dividend payable to a non-controlling shareholder
of a non wholly-owned subsidiary

Interest payable

Other tax payables

Other creditors and accrued expenses

Total

As at 31 December

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
___________ 61,408
2,414,850 2,335,983
24,726 25,128

5,741 5,835

145,362 155,216
209,855 176,442
483,194 543,132

_______ 3283728 ... 3241736
3,345,134 3,241,736

(i) Trade payables totalling HK$1,826,276,000 as at 31 December 2024 (31 December
2023: HK$1,864,144,000) represent construction payables for the Group’s Build-
Operate-Transfer and Build-Own-Operations arrangements.
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23. Trade and other payables (continued)

24.

The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the date of invoice {or date of recognition, if
earlier), as at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Within 6 months
QOver 6 months

Borrowings

Non-current

Bank loans - secured {(i){ii)(iv}{v}
Bank Ioans - unsecured (i) (ili){iv){v)
Bonds payable - secured (note 25)
Bonds payable - unsecured (note 25)

Current

Bank loans - secured {i){iif){iv){v}
Bank loans - unsecured (ii)(iii)(iv)(v)
Bonds payable - secured {note 25)
Bonds payable - unsecured (note 25)

As at 31 December

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$’000

1,543,260 1,514,769

871,590 821,214

2,414,850 2,335,983

As at 31 December 2024 As at 31 December 2023

Maturity HK$'000 Maturity HK$'000
2026-2039 2,685,514 2025 - 2039 2,426,280
2026-2043 2,596,369 2025 -2043 3.483,128
2027 1,683,407 -
2026-2027 5,342,9M 2025 - 2026 4,888,072
........ 12,208,281 veoo...10,798,480

2025 251,682 2024 218,916

2025 2,658,280 2024 2,543,566

2025 201,235 -

2025 1,070,132 2024 1,844 411
......... 4,181,329 o.......4,608,893

16,389,610 15,405,373
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China Everbright Wafer Limited

Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

As at 31 December

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
Analysed into:
Bank loans repayable:
Within 1 year or on demand 2,909,962 2,762,482
After 1 year but within 2 years 1,151,855 1,156,400
After 2 years but within 5 years 1,333,342 2,172,073
After 5 years 2,696,686 2,580,935
_________ 8,091,845 8671890
Bonds repayable:
Within 1 year or on demand 1,271,367 1,844,411
After 1 year but within 2 years 3,948,393 1,083,721
After 2 years but within 5 years 3,078,005 3,805,351
_________ 8,207,765 6733483
Total 16,389,610 15,405,373

()

(if)

(i)

Certain banking facilities of the Group are secured by certain revenue, contract assets,
receivables and intangible assets in connection with the Group’s service concession
arrangements (31 December 2023: certain revenue, contract assets, receivables and
intangible assets in connection with the Group's service concession arrangements and
the equity interests in certain subsidiaries). Such banking facilities, amounting to
HK$3,755,906,000 as at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: HK$2,919,175,000)
were utilised to the extent of HK$2,837,196,000 (31 December 2023:
HK$2,645,196,000).

The unsecured banking facilities amounting to HK$7,963,373,000 as at 31 December
2024 (31 December 2023: HK$7,356,294,000) were utilised to the extent of
HK$5,254,649,000 (31 December 2023; HK$6,026,694,000). Among the unsecured
banking facilities of the Group, facilities of HK$533,250,000 are guaranteed by the
Company as at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: HK$734,139,000), and were
utilised to the extent of HK$107,040,000 as at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023:
HK$363,150,000).

Banking facilities of HK$5,915,957,000 as at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023:
HK$5,927,696,000), respectively, are subject to the fulfiment of covenants relating to
certain of the Group’s financial ratios. [If the Group were to breach the covenants, the
drawn down facilities would become payable on demand. At 31 December 2024, such
facilities were utilised to the exient of HK$5,156,669,000 (31 December 2023:
HK$4,909,540,000). The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants
and has not found any defaults. Certain banking facilities also restrict some of the
Company's subsidiaries from declaring or paying dividends to shareholders without
obtaining prior written approval of the banks or require the Group to process waste water
treatment operating fee via respective financial institutions. Further details of the Group’s
management of liquidity risk are set out in note 36.
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24. Borrowings (continued)

25.

(iv)

(v}

Bank loans of HK$7,492 421,000 as at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023:
HK$8,454,330,000) bear interest at variable rates ranging from 2.40% to 3.43% per
annum (2023: 2.80% to 7.02%), bank loans of HK$599,424,000 as at 31 December 2024
(31 December 2023: HK$217,560,000) bear interest at fixed rates ranging from 2.96%
to 3.35% per annum (2023: 3.35%), and bonds payable of HK$8,297,765,000 as at 31
December 2024 (31 December 2023: HK$6,733,483,000) bear interest at fixed rates
ranging from 2.67% to 3.20% per annum (2023: 2.82% to 3.75%).

The Group’s bank loans of HK$8,091,845,000 as at 31 December 2024 (31 December
2023; HK$6,529,009,000) are denominated in RMB, no bank loans as at 31 December
2024 are denominated in HK$ (31 December 2023: HK$2,117,674,000) and EUR (31
December 2023: HK$25,207,000).

Bonds payable

Group
As at 31 December
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
Non-current
Asset-backed securities - secured (ii) 1,683,407 -
Medium term notes - unsecured (i) 5,342,991 4,889,072
___________ 7,026,398 4,889,072
Current
Asset-backed securities - secured (ii) 201,235 -
Corporate bonds - unsecured (iii) - 761,506
Medium term notes - unsecured (i) 1,070,132 1,082,905
e 270,367 L 1,844,411
Total 8,297,765 6,733,483

Notice of registration acceptance received in 2023

On 2 March 2023, the Company received a notice of registration acceptance issued by
National Association of Financial Market Institutional Investors of the People’s Republic
of China in respect of MTN, with a registered principal amount of RMBS5 billion, effective
for two years since the notice was issued.

On 17 April 2023, the Company issued the 2023 first tranche of RMB-denominated MTN
of RMB1 billion, before related expenses of RMB3,000,000, with an interest rate at
3.20% per annum, a subscription rate of 2.37 times and a maturity period of 5 years from
the issuance date. The interest shall be paid annually from 18 April 2023 and up to the
redemption date.

65



China Everbright Water Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

25. Bonds payable (continued)

(i)

On 17 July 2023, the Company issued the 2023 second tranche of RMB-denominated
MTN of RMB1.5 billion, before related expenses of RMB4,500,000, with an interest rate
at 2.97% per annum, a subscription rate of 2.25 times and a maturity period of 5 years
from the issuance date. The interest shall be paid annually from 18 July 2023 and up to
the redemption date.

On 23 August 2023, the Company issued the 2023 third tranche of RMB-denominated
MTN of RMB1 billion, before related expenses of RMB3,000,000, with an interest rate at
2.82% per annum, a subscription rate of 2.88 times and a maturity period of 5 years from
the issuance date. The interest shall be paid annually from 24 August 2023 and up to
the redemption date.

On 8 January 2024, the Company issued the 2024 first tranche of RMB-denominated
MTN of RMB1.5 billion, before related expenses of RMB4,500,000, with an interest rate
at 2.80% per annum, a subscription rate of 3.07 times and a maturity period of 5 years
from the issuance date. The interest shall be paid annually from 9 January 2024 and up
to the redemption date.

The Company submitied the application to the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (“SZSE") on
8 December 2023 for a possible issuance of ABS by Everbright Water (Shenzhen)
Limited ("Shenzhen Water"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, to qualified
investors in the PRC pursuant to an asset-backed securities scheme (the “Scheme”).
On 6 March 2024, the SZSE issued a no-objection letter (the "No-objection Letter”)
confirming that it has no objections to the potential issuance of ABS. Pursuant to the No-
objection Letter, the issuance size of the ABS shall not be more than RMB2 billion and
the issuance of ABS shall be completed within 12 months from the date of the No-
objection Letter.

On 19 April 2024, the ABS were successfully issued with total amount of RMB2 billion,
before related expenses of RMB4,500,000, of which the preference ABS amounting to
RMB1.9 billicn were subscribed by gualified investors in the PRC and the subordinate
ABS amounting to RMB100 miilion was subscribed by Shenzhen Water.

The original beneficiary of the securities is Shenzhen Water. The underlying assets of
the ABS are the rights of three project companies in Shandong Province in relation to
four waste water treaiment projects, to receive waste water treatment fees during a
specific period of nine years starting from 1 November 2023. The relevant project
companies have pledged part of the underlying assets in favour of the Scheme.

The preference ABS are classified into seven classes based on the maturity dates of
such preference ABS, comprising:

(a) Preference ABS 01 of RMB182,000,000 (“Preference ABS 17);
{b) Preference ABS 02 of RMB190,500,000 (“Preference ABS 27);
(c) Preference ABS 03 of RMB196,000,000 (“Preference ABS 3%);
{d} Preference ABS 04 of RMB212,000,000 {*Preference ABS 47);
(e} Preference ABS 05 of RMB218,000,000 ("Preference ABS 57);
(H Preference ABS 06 of RMB228,000,000 (“Preference ABS 67); and
(9) Preference ABS 07 of RMB674,000,000 (“Preference ABS 77);
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(a)

(b)

China Everbright Water Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

Bonds payable (continued})
The maturity dates for preference ABS are from 2024 to 2027.

The principal and interest of the preference ABS are repayable pursuant to the
repayment schedule of the Scheme, with an interest rate ranging from between 2.50%
to 2.70% per annum. The Company has the option to adjust the interest rate of
Preference ABS 4, Preference ABS 5, Preference ABS 6 and Preference ABS 7 from
the 47th day before 28 February 2027 (“the 12th Repayment Date”) and 28 February
2033 (“the 24th Repayment Date"). The holders of Preference ABS 4, Preference ABS
5, Preference ABS 6 and Preference ABS 7 have an option to sell back the notes to the
original beneficiary at the nominal price, and the exercisable period of this option is from
the 45th day before the repayment date to the 31th day before the repayment date.

(i) The Company has repaid the principal and interest of the third tranche of the Corporate
Bond on 22 January 2024.

Income tax in the consolidated statements of financial position

Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial position represents:

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

At the beginning of the year 84,410 61,329
Provision for PRC income tax charged for the year

(note 9) 257,271 260,619

(Over)/under-provision in prior years (note 9) (5,850} 7,066

PRC income tax paid (281,834) (242,495)

Exchange realignment (984) (2,109)

At the end of the year 53,013 84,410

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

The movements in deferred tax (assets)/liabilities during the financial year are as follows:

Temporary
Fair vaiue differences
adjustments on assets
arising from recognised Undistributed
acquisition of under profits of
subsidiaries IFRIC 12 subsidiaries Others Total
HK$'000 HK$'D0D HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 January 2023 141,008 1,375,414 429,954 (27) 1,847,437
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to profit or
loss {8,202) 86,498 55,900 29 137,225
Exchange realignment (8,016) {37,252) (12.329) - (55,597)
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 126,878 1,428,660 473,525 2 2,029,065
Deferred tax charged/{credited} to profit or
loss (7,751) 89,057 77,736 (91,397) 67,645
Exchange realignment (5,264) (26,567) {3,808) 1,172 (34,465)
At 31 December 2024 113,863 1,491,150 547,455 (90,223) 2,062,245
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27.
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Income tax in the consolidated statements of financial position (continued)
Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of financial position

As at 31 December

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$000
Net deferred tax asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position (42,954) (880)
Net deferred tax liability in the consolidated
statement of financial position 2,105,199 2,029,945
Total 2,062,245 2,029,065

The Group has estimated accumulated tax losses arising in Mainland China of approximately
HK$385,778,000 as at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023; HK$322,161,000), that will
expire in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which
the losses arose. Deferred tax assets in respect of such tax losses arising in Mainland China
have not been recognised as they have arisen in certain subsidiaries that have been loss-
rmaking for some time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is levied on dividends
declared to foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland
China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate
is 5% or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated from 1
January 2008. All applicable PRC subsidiaries’ undistributed retained earnings have been
applied with withholding taxes and recorded as deferred tax.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dividends by the Company
to its shareholders.

Share capital
As at 31 December
2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
Authorised:
10,000,000,000 cordinary shares of par value of
HK$1.00 each 10,000,000 10,000,000
Issued and fully paid:
2,860,876,723 ordinary shares of par value of
HK$1.00 each 2,860,877 2,860,877
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Share capital (continued)

A summary of movements in share capital is as follows:

Number of Share
shares in issue capital
000 HK$'000
Issued and fully paid:
At 31 December 2023, 1 January 2024 and 31
December 2024 2,860,877 2,860,877

The Group did not have any treasury shares as at 31 December 2024 and 2023.

Reserves
As at 31 December
Notes 2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
Share premium 1,599,765 1,599,765
Foreign currency translation reserve (i) (1,625,513) (1,375,419)
Statutory reserve (i) 899,590 776,715
Contributed surplus reserve (iii) 1,229,302 1,229,302
Other reserves (iv) 8,203 8,203
Retained earnings 6,862,896 6,306,678
8,974,243 8,545,244
Notes:

(i}  Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve represents exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements of the Company and foreign operations whose
functional currencies are different from the Group’s presentation currency.

(i Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China, the subsidiaries
in the PRC are required to allocate 10% of the statutory after-tax profiis to the statutory
reserve until the cumulative total of the reserve reaches 50% of the subsidiaries’
regisiered capital. Subject to approval from the relevant PRC authorities, the statutory
reserve may be used to offset any accumulated losses or increase the registered capital
of the subsidiaries. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution to
shareholders of the PRC subsidiaries.
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28. Reserves (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Contributed surplus reserve

Contributed surplus reserve arose from the reduction of share premium. Pursuant to the
special resolution at the Special General Meeting of the Company held on 15 December
2015, the entire amount standing to the credit of the Company’'s share premium was
reduced to nil and transferred to the contributed surplus reserve.

Other reserves

Other reserves comprise capital reserve and other reserve.
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China Everbright Waler Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

29. Perpetual capital instruments

30.

(@)

As at 31 December

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

At 1 January 806,982 806,982

Share of profit for the year 25,047 37,578
Distribution to helders of perpetual capital ‘

instruments (25,047) (37,578)

At 31 December 806,982 806,982

Notes to the consolidated statement of cash flows

Major non-cash transactions

(i)

(ii)

(il

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the interest expenses on
corporate bonds, MTN and ABS of HK$129,679,000 and HK$144,462,000, respectively,
were not yet setiled by the Group, and recorded in “Trade and other payables” in the
consolidated statements of financial position as at 31 December 2024 and 2023, and
have no cash flow impact to the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the distribution to holders of the first tranche
of perpetual capital instruments of HK$24,726,000 (31 December 2023; HK$25,128,000)
was not yet settled by the Group as at 31 December 2024, and recorded in “Trade and
other payables” in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2024, and have no cash flow impact to the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the non-controlling shareholder of a non-
wholly-owned subsidiary made capital contribution of HK$37,187,000 to the non-wholly-
owned subsidiary by using dividends declared in 2023, and had no cash flow impact to
the Group. No such non-cash transaction occurred in 2024.
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30. Notes to the consolidated statements of cash flows (continued)

(b)

(c)

31.

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Dividend
payable to Distribution
non-controlling payable to
shareholders holders of
of non wholly- perpetual
Bonds Interest owned capital
Bank loans payable payable subsidiaries  instruments
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 January 2023 8,979,416 6,282,719 128,912 5364 13,672
Changes from financing cash flows (133,352) 683,036 (550,329) - {25,558)
Finance costs 6,024 4,124 580,420 - -
Dividend declared to a non-contrelling
shareholder of a subsidiary - - - 37,187 -
Capital contribution received by a non :
wholly-owned subsidiary from a non-
controlling shareholder - - - (37,187 -
Profit attributable to holders of perpetual
capital instruments - - - - 37,578
Foreign exchange movement {180,198) (236,396) {3.787) 471 (564)
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January
2024 8,671,890 6,733,483 155,216 5,835 25,128
Changes from financing cash flows (468,652} 1,690,507 (536,096) - (25,047}
Finance costs 4,443 7,624 528,628 - -
Profit aftributable to holders of perpetual
capital instruments - - - - 25,047
Foreign exchange movement {115,836) (133,849) (2,386) (94} {402)
At 31 December 2024 8,001,845 8,297,765 145,362 5,741 24,726

Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated statement of cash flows is as

follows:

Within operating activities
Within financing activities

Pledge of assets

Year ended 31 December

2024
HK$'000

1,562
8,474

2023
HK$000

1,258
7,485

As at 31 December 2024, certain concession rights of the Group’s water environment
management projects (comprising concession rights of intangible assets, contract assets and
trade receivables) with aggregate carrying amounts of HK$8,782,066,000 (31 December 2023:
HK$5,550,547,000) were pledged to secure bank loan facilities granted to the Group and the
issuance of the ABS (31 December 2023: bank loan facilities).
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(@)

(b)

33.

(@)

China Everbright Water Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

Commitments
The Group had the following commitments as at the reporting date:

As at 31 December

2024 2023
HK$’000 HK$'000
Purchase commitments outstanding in connection
with the Group’s construction contracts were as
follows:
Contracted, but not provided for 1,318,309 2,857,994

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had an outstanding capital commitment of HK$22,348,000
(31 December 2023: HK$22,711,000) relating to the capital coniribution to an unlisied equity
investment.

Material related party transactions
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in this consolidated financial
statements, the Group entered into the following material related party transactions during the

year:

The Group entered into the following related party transactions with non-controlling
shareholders of non wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group:

Year ended 31 December

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

Revenue from project operation service 13,338 10,610
Cost of construction service 369,241 404,465
Sales of equipment 71,321 4142
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(b)

()

(d)
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Material related party transactions (continued)

The Group entered into the following related party transactions with an affiliate company of a
non-controlling shareholder of a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group:

Year ended 31 December

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

Revenue from project operation service 74,474 77,191
Finance income 10,835 12,790

The Group entered into the following related party transactions with associates of the Group:

Year ended 31 December

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000

Service expenses for operation of waste water
treatment plants 44223 46,165
Technical operation service fee 111,854 42,981

The Group entered into the following related party transactions with subsidiaries of China
Everbright Group Lid.:

Year ended 31 December

Note 2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

Sales of equipment (i) 5,319 11,509
Underwriting service fee (i) 976 8,962
Insurance expenses (i) 3,310 2,844
Healthcare protection services expenses (iv) 14,738 14,615
Cost of project operation service v) 1,759 284

Notes:

(i)  The sales of equipment to fellow subsidiaries of the Group were conducted based on
mutually agreed terms.

76



China Everbright Water Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

33. Material related party transactions (continued)

()

(i)  The underwriting service fees were paid to a fellow subsidiary in connection to the
issuance of the MTN for year ended 31 December 2024. The fees were calculated
pursuant to the relevant underwriting agreements.

(i) The insurance expenses were charged by a fellow subsidiary of the Group on mutually
agreed terms. ‘

(iv) The healthcare protection services expenses were charged by a fellow subsidiary of the
Group on mutually agreed terms.

(v) The cost of project operation service to fellow subsidiaries of the Group were conducted
based on mutually agreed terms.

Transactions with other stated-owned entities in Mainland China:

The Group operates in an economic environment predominated by enterprises directly or
indirectly owned and/or controlled by the PRC government through its numerous authorities,
affiliates or other organisations (collectively “Other SOEs"). During the financial year, the
Group had transactions with the Other SOEs including, but not limited to the waste water
treatment service and utilities consumption. The directors of the Company consider that the
transactions with the Other SOEs are activities in the ordinary course of the Group’s business,
and that the dealings of the Group have not been significantly or unduly affected by the fact
that the Group and the Other SOEs are ultimately controlled or owned by the PRC government,
The Group has also established pricing policies for producis and services and such pricing
policies are not carried out on non-market terms and do not depend on whether or not the
customers are the Other SOEs. Having due regard to the substance of the relationships, the
directors are of the opinion that none of these transactions is a material related party
transaction that would require separate disclosure.
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(/  Balance with related parties:
(i}  Amounts due from related parties
As at 31 December

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000

Trade receivables:
- Non-controlling shareholder of non wholly-

owned subsidiaries 7,942 9,608
- An affiliate company of a non-controlling

shareholder of a non wholly-owned

subsidiary 19,536 6,810

27,478 16,418

Other receivables:
- Non-controlling shareholder of non wholly-

owned subsidiaries 25,633 22,096
- Associates® 15,124 6,329
40,757 28,425

Contract asset:
- An affiliate company of a non-controlling
sharehoider of a non whoily-owned
subsidiary 151,656 179,313

* Amounts due from associates of the Group of HK$15,124,000 (31 December
2023:HK$6,329,000) as at 31 December 2024 included amount due from an
associate of HK$7,493,000 (31 December 2023:HK$6,329,000) that was unsecured,
repayable on demand and interest-bearing at a rate of 3.35% (31 December 2023:
4.75%) per annum.
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33. Material related party transactions (continued)

(ii)

Amounts due to related parties

Trade payables:

- Associates™

- Non-controlling shareholder of non wholly-
owned subsidiaries*

Other payables:

- Non-controlling shareholder of non wholly-
owned subsidiaries™

- Associates™*

Dividend payables:
- Non-controlling shareholder of non wholly-
owned subsidiaries

As at 31 December

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
11,837 8,652
200,112 208,791
211,949 217,343
224,042 218,220
3,390 708
228,332 218,928
5,741 5,836

* The trade payables are all unsecured, interest-free and repayable on credit terms
similar to those offered by the associate to its major customers.

** The other payables of HK$181,569,000

{31 December 2023: HK$184,521,000) are

unsecured, interest-bearing at rates announced by the People’s Bank of China and
repayable on demand; and remaining balance of HK$46,763,000 (31 December 2023:
HK$ 34,407,000) are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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Material related party transactions (continued)

The Group paid compensation of directors and key management personnel as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
Salaries, bonuses and related benefit (note 1) 8,706 18,707
Directors' fees 2,086 1,977
Retirement scheme contributions 1,465 2,057
12,257 22741

Comprising amounts paid/payable to:
Directors of the Company 7,855 11,169
Other key management personnel 4,402 11,572
12,257 22,741

Note 1; The bonus amount of the year ended 31 December 2024 for the Group’s directors

and senior management is not yet finalised.

The Group has rental contracts with three (2023: two) fellow subsidiaries of the Group. At the
reporting date, the Group had total lease liabilities with fellow subsidiaries under non-

cancellable leases falling due as follows:

As at 31 December

2024 2023

HK$'000 HK$'000

Lease liabilities - current 1,769 3,202
Lease liabilities - non-current 340 874
2,109 4 076

Under such rentél contracts, the minimum lease payment during the year was HK$5,081,000
(2023: HK$5,293,000). As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s right-of-use assets relating to
such rental contracts amounted to HK$2,151,000 (31 December 2023: HK$4,082,000).
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Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial instruments

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, current portion
of contract assets, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables and borrowings
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instrument.

The Group’s financial management department is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial instruments. At each reporting date, the
financial management department analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed
and approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the
instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in
a forced or liguidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate
the fair values.

The fair values of the non-current portion of contract assets, other receivables and borrowings
have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group's
own non-performance risk for borrowings as at the end of each of the financial year was
assessed to be insignificant. The carrying amounts of these assets and liabilities approximate
to their fair values.

The fair values of unlisted investments at FVTPL as at 31 December 2023 are based on net
asset value of the investees which approximate the fair value.

The fair value of unlisted equity investment at FVTPL 31 December 2024 and 2023 is based
on the expected future cash flows of the investment.

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the valuation of financial instruments
together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December 2024 and 2023:

Significant
unobservable Sensitivity of fair value to the
Valuation technigue input Ratio input

31 December 2024: 1%
increase {(decrease) in discount
rate would resuli in decrease in

fair value by HK$158,000 or
Unlisted equity investment  Discounted cash flow 31 December increase in fair value by
at FVTPL method Discount rate 2024: 2.8% HK$160,000

31 December 2023: 1%
increase (decrease) in discount
rate would result in decrease in

fair value by HK$319,000 or
Unlisted equity investment  Discounted cash flow 31 December increase in fair value by
at FVTPL method Discount rate 2023: 2.8% HK$325,000
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34. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial instruments (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial
instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2024

Fair value measurement using

Significant

Quoted prices in Significant unobservabie

aclive markels  observable inputs inputs
{Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3} Total
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Unlisted equity investment at FVTPL - - 32,928 32,928
- - 32,928 32,928

As at 31 December 2023
Fair value measurement using

Significant

Quoted prices in Significant unobservable

active markets  observable inpuls inputs
{Level 1) {Level 2} {Level 3) Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HIK$'000
Unlisted investments at FVTPL - 88,150 - 88,150
Unlisted equity investment at FVTPL - - 32,998 32,998
- 88,150 32,998 121,148
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34. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial instruments (continued)

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 2 during the year are as follows:

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000

Unlisted investments at FVTPL:
At 1 January 88,150 186,219
Fair value gain/(loss) (note 6) 7,036 (31,218)
Redemption (94,811) (62,442)
Exchange realignment (375) (4,409)
At 31 December - 88,150

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during the year are as follows:

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000

Unlisted equity investment at FVTPL:
At 1 January 32,998 35,498
Fair value gain/(loss) (note 6) 464 (1,586)
Exchange realignment {5634) {914)
At 31 December 32,928 32,998

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value as at 31 December 2024
(31 December 2023: Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2024, there were no transfers of fair value measurements

between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets
and financial liabilities (2023; Nil).
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The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the end of each

financial year are as follows:

Financial assets

Financial assets included in trade and other
receivables

Other financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial assets included in trade and other
receivables

Other financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 December 2024

Financial liabilities - financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities included in trade and other

payables
Borrowings
Lease liabilities

Financial

assels Financial

at amortised assels at
cost FVTPL Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
5,672,480 - 5,672,480
- 32,928 32,928
1,847,805 - 1,847,805
7,520,285 32,928 7,553,213

As at 31 December 2023
Financial

assels Financial

al amortised assets at
cost FVTPL Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
5,060,804 - 5,060,804
- 121,148 121,148
1,881,401 - 1,881,401
6,942,205 121,148 7,063,353

As at 31 December

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
3,073,873 2,897,784
16,389,610 15,405,373
4728 6,855
19,468,211 18,310,012
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36. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise borrowings, cash and cash equivalents.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to finance the Group's operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade and other receivables,
trade and other payables and lease liabilities, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign
currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from the Group’s borrowings, and cash and cash
equivalents. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk. The Group does not use financial derivatives to hedge against the interest rate risk. The
Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by management is set out in (i) below.

(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s net borrowings (being

interest-bearing financial liabilities less cash and cash equivalents) at the end of each of
the financial year.

As at 31 December 2024 As at 31 December 2023
Effective Effective
interest rate inferest rate
% HK$'000 % HK$'000
Net fixed rate borrowings/(deposits}):
Borrowings 2.67-3.35 8,897,189 282-3.75 6,951,043
Less: Amount due from an associate 3.35 (7,493) 4.75 (6,329)
........ 8,889,696 ... 8944714
Net variable rate
borrowings/(deposits):
Borrowings 240-3.43 7,492 421 2.80-7.02 8,454,330
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 0.00-1.55 (1.847,805) 0.00-1.85 (1,881,401}
________ 5,644,616 ... B572,920
Total net borrowings 14,534,312 13,517,643

(i) Sensitivity analysis

It is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 1% in interest rates at 31 December
2024 (31 December 2023: 1%), with all other- variables held constant, would
decreasefincrease the Group's profit before tax by approximately HK$56,446,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: HK$65,729,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
before tax that would arise assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the end of the reporting period. In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments held by the Group at the end of the
reporting period, the impact on the Group’s profit before tax is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense or income of such a change in interest rates. The
analysis was performed on the same basis throughout the financial year.
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36. Financial risk management objectives and policies {continued)

Foreign currency risk

()

Exposure to currency risk

The Group is exposed fo currency risk primarily from borrowings, cash and cash
equivalents, receivables and payables that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations to which they relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily HK$, RMB, US$, SGD and EUR.

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the end of the reporting period to
currency risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate. For presentation purposes,
the amounts of the exposure are shown in HK$, translated using the spot rate at the end
of the reporting period. Differences resulting from the translation in the financial
statement of foreign operations into the Group’s presentation currency are excluded.

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in HKE)

As at 31 December 2024

RMB SGD HKY Uss EUR

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

Cash and cash equivalents 9,089 3,444 16,545 46,225 -

Borrowings {107,040) - - - -

Amounts due from/(ic)

related companies, net 281,674 (1986) 5,337,209 23 34,413

Trade and other payables (2,271) (1,975) - (1,037) -

181,452 1,273 5,353,754 45,211 34,413

Exposure to foreign currencies
{expressed in HK§)
As at 31 December 2023

RMB 8GD HKS uss EUR

HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Cash and cash equivalents 16,833 2,522 17,044 15,248 -

Borrowings (163,170) - {1,917,604) - {25,207)
Amounis due {to)/ from

related companies, net (523,583) (55) 4,328,433 23 35,252

Trade and other payables (5,608) {1,301) {4,268} - (8)

(675,528) 1,166 2,423,515 15,269 10,037
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36. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

(if)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the Group's profit before tax
that would arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant exposure at
the end of the repoerting period had changed at that date, assuming all other risk variables
remained constant. In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between the HK$
and the US$ would be materially unaffected by any changes in movement in value of the
US$ against other currencies. Except for those subsidiaries with their functional
currencies other than HKS$, the impact of foreign exchange rate fluctuations with respect
to the assets and liabilities denominated in US$ is insignificant as the HK$ is pegged to
the US$.

As at 31 December 2024 As at 31 December 2023
increase/ Increase/

(decrease) in ncrease/ (decrease) in Increase/
foreign exchange (decrease) in  foreign exchange (decreasa) in
rafe profit before tax rate profit before tax
% HK$'000 % HK$ 000
RMB 5 9,073 10 (67,553)
RMB (5 {9.073) (10} 67,553
SGD 5 64 10 117
8GD (5) (64) (10) (117
HKS$ 5 267,688 10 242,352
HK$ (5) (267,688) (10) (242,352)
Uss 5 2,261 10 1,527
uss (5) (2.261) (10) (1,527)
EUR ‘ 5 1,721 10 1,004
EUR {5) (1,721 (10) {1,004)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the Group entities’ profit before tax measured in the
respective functional currencies, translated intoc Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate
ruling at the end of the reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange rates had been
applied to remeasure those financial instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period, including inter-company
payables and receivables within the Group which are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currencies of the lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes
differences that would result from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’s presentation currency. The analysis was performed on the
same basis throughout the financial year.

Credit risk

Management has a credif policy in place and the exposures to credit risk are monitored on an
ongoing basis. Debis are usually due within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing.
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Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Trade receivables of the Group represent receivables in respect of revenue from
environmental water project operation services which are settled on a monthly basis. In
addition, the Group has contract assets in respect of the BOT, TOT and certain BOO
arrangements.

At 31 December 2024, “Trade and other receivables™ and “Contract assets” amounted to
HK$30,018,277,000 (31 December 2023: HK$28,240,941,000} of which HK$1,509,482,000
(31 December 2023: HK$4,239,729,000) were due from the largest customer and
HK$8,212,424,486 (31 December 2023; HK$9,042,498,000) were due from the five largest
customers in aggregate of the Group. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset in the consolidated statement of financial position.
Since the parties to BOT, TOT and BOO arrangements are local government authorities in the
PRC, the Group considers the credit risk is low as at 31 December 2024 and 2023. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9, management groups financial instruments on basis of shared
credit risk characteristics, such as instrument type and credit risk ratings for the purpose of
determining significant increase in credit risk and calculation of impairment.

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
- a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;
- it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial recrganisation.

To manage credit risk arising from trade receivables and contract assets, the credit quality of
the debtors is assessed, taking into account their financial position, historical setilement
records, past experience and other factors. The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of lifetime expected loss
provision for all trade receivables and contract assets.

The Group has established a policy to perform an assessment as at 31 December 2024, of
whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition,
by considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial
instrument. The Group groups its other receivables into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, as
described below:

Stage 1 When other receivables are first recognised, the Group recognised an allowance
based on 12 months’ ECL.

Stage 2 When other receivables have shown a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the Group records an allowance for the lifetime ECLs.

Stage 3 Other receivables considered credit-impaired. The Group records an allowance for
the lifetime ECLs.
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36. Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Management also makes periodic individual assessments for other receivables on the
recoverability of other receivables based on historical setilement records, past experience and
other factors. Management believes that there is no material credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding balance of other receivables as at 31 December 2024 (31 December 2023: Nil).

As at 31 December 2024, all cash and cash equivalents were deposited with banks without
significant credit risk.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk.
Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
“Contract assets” as well as “Trade and other receivables” are set out in notes 18 and 20,
respectively.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for their own cash management,
including the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands. The Group's policy is to regularly menitor its liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the
Group can be required to pay.

As at 31 December 2024

Total More than More than

confracfual Within 1 year 2 years
Canrying undiscounted 1 yearor but within but within More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 8 years & years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS'000

Financial liabilities included in trade and

other payables 3,073,873 3,073,873 3,073,873 - - -
Lease liabilities 4,728 4,917 3,479 1,438 - -
Borrowings 16,389,610 17,939,887 4,643,088 5,451,162 4,795,231 3,050,408
19,468,211 21,018,677 7,720,440 5,452,600 4,795,231 3,050,408

As at 31 December 2023

Total More than More than

contractual Within 1 year 2 years
Carrying undiscounied 1 yearor buf within but within More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Financial liabilities included in frade and

other payables 2,897,784 2,897,784 2,897,784 - - -
Lease liabilities 6,855 7,488 5,596 1,491 64 347
Borrowings 15,408,373 16,911,415 5,085,420 2,575,330 6,368,008 2,912,657
18,310,012 19,816,697 7,958,800 2,576,821 6,368,072 2,913,004
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Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain an optimal capital structure so as to maximise
shareholders' value,

In order to maintain or achieve an optimal capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividend payment, issue new shares or obtain new borrowings. The Group's strategies are
to maintain a prudent balance between the advantage and flexibility afforded by a sound capital
position and the higher return on equity that is possible with greater leverage. There was no
change in capital management pelicies during the reporting period.

Consistently, the Group monitors capital based on a net debt against equity ratio. The net debt
against equity ratio is calculated by dividing net debt by total equity. Net debt including
borrowings and lease liabilities less cash and cash equivalents. Total equity comprises share
capital, reserves, perpetual capital instruments and non-controlling interests.

As at 31 December

2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$'000
Current liabilities
Borrowings 4,181,329 4,608,893
Lease liabilities 3,341 5412
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 12,208,281 10,798,480
Lease liabilities 1,387 1,443
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (1,847,805) {1,881,401)
Net debt 14,546,533 13,530,827
Total equity 13,991,678 13,452,342
Net debt against equity ratio 104% 101%

Except for the banking facilities which require the fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of
the Group’s financial ratios as disclosed in note 24, the Group does not subject to externally
imposed capital requirements.
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Non-adjusting events after the reporting period

On 8 January 2025, the Company announced the completion of the issuance of China
Everbright Water Limited First Tranche Medium Term Notes 2025 (the “2025 First Tranche
MTN") on 6 January 2025 and 7 January 2025, which was fully subscribed for by institutional
investors in the national inter-bank bond market (the “Institutional Investors”) of Mainland
China. The 2025 First Tranche MTN has a principal amount of RMB1.5 billion, with a maturity
period of 5 years (with an interest rate adjustment option to be exercised by the Company and
a resale option to be exercised by the noteholders at the end of the third interest-bearing year)
and an interest rate of 1.78%. The proceeds from the issuance of the 2025 First Tranche MTN
are used to replenish the working capital of the Company’s subsidiaries and repay the interest-
bearing debts of the Company or its subsidiaries.

On 16 April 2025, the Company announced the completion of the issuance of China Everbright
Water Limited Second Tranche Medium Term Notes 2025 (the “2025 Second Tranche MTN")
on 14 April 2025 and 15 April 2025, which was fully subscribed for by institutional investors in
the national inter-bank bond market (the “Institutional Investors™ of Mainland China. The 2025
Second Tranche MTN has a principal amount of RMB1 billion, with a maturity period of 5 years
(with an interest rate adjustment option to be exercised by the Company and a resale option
to be exercised by the noteholders at the end of the third interest-bearing year) and an interest
rate of 1.90%. The proceeds from the issuance of the 2025 Second Tranche MTN are used to
repay the outstanding debts of the Company of or its subsidiaries.
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38. Company-level statement of financial position

As at 31 December

2024 2023
HK$°000 HK$’'000
Non-current asset
Interests in subsidiaries 10,322,881 10,023,114
Total non-current assets 10,322,881 10,023,114
Current assets
Other receivables 9,381,972 10,505,695
Other financial assets - 88,150
Cash and cash equivalents 122,815 42,470
Total current assets 9,504,787 10,636,315
Current liabilities
Other payables 166,888 183,082
Borrowings 3,002,204 3,624,164
Total current liabilities 3,169,092 3,807,246
Net current assets 6,335,695 6,829,069
Total assets less current liabilities 16,658,576 16,852,183
Non-current liability
Borrowings 5,833,775 6,049,733
Total non-current liability 5,833,775 6,049,733
Net assets 10,824,801 10,802,450
Equity
Share capital 2,860,877 2,860,877
Reserves 7,156,942 7,134,591
10,017,819 9,995,468
Perpetual capital instruments 806,982 806,982
Total equity 10,824,801 10,802,450

C £O = T

Tao Junjie
Executive Director

~ M

7 Wi F.
Wang Yuexing
Executive Director
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Financlal statements for the year ended 31 December 2024

Comparative figures

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted mainly to conform to current year's
presentation and to provide comparative amount in respect of items disclosed in 2024.

Authorisation of financial statements for issue

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024 were authorised for issue in
accordance with a resolution of the directors on 30 April 2025.
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TT) . ZEEFPFEZERNEEFIIFBETHE 36.
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=t+—HIRBAEXFERI S HETE.,

(E_FE_MF+"A=1t—H, ZIETrHBETRECRANMEUETEERIUERN 3%E
10% (CE_=F+A=1+—H: 3%ZE 10%) KB KFi+BNVSHE WS RETTE
EHAWEIESH. —F_NF, ERTHSMRETNIREIITIERA 7.5%F 9.3% (CF-=
F+R=1—H: 11.4%) . EEERENEEXEENRFHFFEENTHEERE. &
EEXRAIMTRRNAHERHTIER, IMMCFYRRAAIRSELTXRFIZER, HizE
R, AL EHATENIEREEATFHIZEELR WSS ENC T REHAY, RIS, T
—EBNF+R=t—HARLEERERSE CE_=FT-R=1—0: %).

AT DT R E T IR R RIMNIERER RN OHE, #EF2E00NE~ e
SHHIREBNE.

ET A EESHIRMER IS H R TKENMET RS HAIR 2AFRBETE 30,464,000 T
Z 949,270,000 #7T2/8) (2023 € 12 B 31 B: 1,754,000,000 #7T) .

REASREHTREUN 28RS, EXRBRIRSHRER T EHEREAE),
BIREFTAEZ NN : &ZE 2024 F 12 B 31 B, EfXpHTIN=_1E0.2%, eI ESTEIEN
F 41,996,000 FHEITE 431,173,000 HBITZE; FEWANIBKETIE 0.5%, BTYEISEFEIEN
F 35,911,000 FHETTE 423,908,000 {ZiBT2iE (2023 £4F 12 B 31 BH: Efairn= 13
0.2%, BJUr[ElE &R 526,000,000 #iT; HWAIBKETE 1%, JWE SRS
1,752,000,000 /#&7T) .

53



15.

16.

HFEPEAK S EIRLT
B2 _F _PUFF = —HIHEEYERE

BE (&)

N ERATA, ERECEFHHERERRNGET RS, FRERMEATESH LiANE
FeHETTRIMKE MEBITEEE 2024 5 12 B 31 B 2023 & 12 B 31 ARYAIEIEEHRIE
7

TR ERPRIZIGEEARR SRS T A REMRIFNN, XA SECRRENE
KFE, EHIRSITHRIAHIZRI RV AT REXI M E - H B RIS W= EE AR,

7=/ NI
#2212 H31 H
2024 £F 2023 £
FHB7T FH7T
Fri5 &= %8 3,540 11,953

REFEAVEFENEZKEAT) (2FRNE LR RISEHIBRANAISLR) ZFBT:

REL LHFE
F=t71 FLRFEE BICRESE % =Py FEUF
Sh (7N
EREEUKSEEERADE ( [EREA] ) 350,84535c  SRE/FEMRME 49 757KALEE
ERKSREFRTT R
She G 7N REKSIE
FOKEEEE (R BIRAE ( [FKEE] ) 1,000,000 TART  HE/AFEAME 40 =

FRFURA R IS F R E AR A SIS 2

#7112 F31 HILFE
2024 £F 2023 £
FHEIT FETT
REN HEKELT (SIR)EF (7,174) 2,008
R SEAE A EIE IS ER (8,413) 431
REFREKE A EINEKEVE 3,540 11,953
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17.

HFEPEAK S EIRLT
B2 _F _PUFF = —HIHEEYERE

asEtIiEs
#E12 H31 H
2024 £ 2023 £
FHBIT FHIT
Fri5 &= #E 1,903 1,262

REFREAVEFENEZES SR (2EBNE LHRIEHIBRANAISLE) ZHFBT:

AEL SHHEK
=t BRFEE W EICOREME =y FEIF
JV Sotravic — St Martin Partner Limited X N _
(“Martin Partner”) SEEERZN 10,000 AEY EEKHR 50 TSIKAbIE
TR AERANT M S HAAEANES SR WHERIS 5
EF 12 531 HILFE
2024 £F 2023 £
FHIT FHEIT
TENSEEEWETR 689 1,261
R G EE R SEIESER 641 1,261
REFANSELINRKE ME 1,903 1,262
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18.

FEDEAKEBIRAA

B2 _F _PUFF = —HIHEEYERE

BHE~
#F12 H31 H
2024 £ 2023 £F
o Tt FHEIT
E|3:1):1
IRBIFFEEET (a) 20,900,262 19,798,284
i B (c) (16,315) (18,573)
20,883,947 19,779,711
EDHA
RBIFTRER™ (a) 2,063,829 2,005,427
R B (c) (1,611) (1,881)
2,062,218 2,003,546
Hith {295 (b) 115,153 154,160
iR B (c) (3,803)
111,350 154,160
2,173,568 2,157,706
R 23,057,515 21,937,417
pE S

(@) FENMF+_B=1—H, BRBIFFELELR ™G3 22,964,091,000 &5 (CFE_=
F+—"H=+—H: 21,803,711,000 &7T) , JHEEFIZSF 3.85%Z 7.83% (CE_=

F+—"B=4+—H: 4.20%Z 7.83%) it&. F
HIRSBHITEE
20,181,967,000 #7T) . ARSS4FF

— = —

_E
NZHBERIFITA 20,425,618,000 #EIT (
WNLHERIERZEMOREH, BLARSBIFTFESEN

——
—_——

NE+—"B=1+—H, 5FHRE=
F+_A=1+—8:

(b)

(©)

THRzEHHER AR mE. EFEESEUSHIRENIIRER (BHE 20) .

TEOF+R=1—H, REFEANEIFIEFTH, 79811,217,987,000
TTHIBAR - EEHEREZ LA (fE 25).

FECF+_B=+—H, HEtb&£95%r~/8 115,153,000 5 (CE_=F+_A=
+—H: 154,160,000 #&T) , BEETEREEERSSUNMTENSHNE, IHEEN
BIEMAFOTR, ERTEARMER S Btrid RS IR o BT FR.

B,

FTECNFE++"A=+—H, 21,729,000 &5 (CE =4 20,454,000 B7T) AN
BRI ERSRILE. AEASEPIRZEFRERBEREVSIREMNE 20
i EE,
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18.

19.

BEE™~ (8

BRI ER S IRAE ZMIT:

T4
EFARIRESIR (£ 8)
e

THR

FEDEAKEBIRAA

B2 _F _PUFF = —HIHEEYERE

#F12 H31 H
2024 £F 2023 £F
FiET FHET
20,454 19,716
1,623 1,282
(348) (544)
21,729 20,454

RERFRRES TE N ER SRS RABREERTE) KTESUE SR

k., T-FE_NF+_R=1t—H, RSEHTLES

B9 0.078%%0 3.30%,

==

JRFAFL R

ETIRERPEANFT S AIFEEMONT:

BT

57

RIS OR RIS IRERS

giZ12 31 H
2024 & 2023 £F
FETT FHEIT
57,159 58,336
#t=212 531 HILFE
2024 £ 2023 £F
FETT FEIT
1,088,012 966,843




20.

RIS KFRFIE fth RIUsER

JEEDHA

ELAth R WK (i)
i B

R BTIRER
SURNEANDT

EPHA

RZIIER (i) (iv)
e

HAGRFRIUR 28 IEE (i) (i)
W RE

BJWEREET
VL= N=IEAN
RS TR

BN

() R TFHEZRERS 30 = 90 HEHE.

58

HFEPEAK S EIRLT
B2 _F _PUFF = —HIHEEYERE

Zt=12 31 H
2024 £F 2023 £
FiBIT FiETT
21,922 22,869
(8,573) (9,782)
13,349 13,087
162,952 193,824
79,197 28,214
242,149 222,038
255,498 235,125
6,071,978 5,060,763
(778,263) (626,215)
5,293,715 4,434,548
400,325 636,027
(50,033) (29,187)
350,292 606,840
100,972 121,805
15,124 6,329
86,563 213,239
552,951 948,213
5,846,666 5,382,761
6,102,164 5,617,886




20.

HFEPEAK S EIRLT
B2 _F _PUFF = —HIHEEYERE

PIHSTCTR B EL it SUSTFRIR (48)

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

v)

FTEETOUF+ZA=1+—H, A AXEFHZ [ENEGIINR IS ] RIS
422,247,000 87T (CE-_=F+_"_H=+—H: 658,896,000 i&75) , EH= 202,094,000
BIT (CE-=F+"B=+—H: 205,380,000 &7T) AYLAEEE (FR) BRASE
b= EmEERNBAEER I, B, EF-F-NF+"F=+—Hit
RR{EIR /9 47,920,000 &0 (CE-=F+"B=+—H: 12,050,000 }&7T) .

FET=F+"A=1+—H, it\% 274,126,000 BcAIBPEIRtERIIGRITAEE
KRS (EiE) ERERATIRIRY E5/KEE MtESRSFTEENEHE XN
TR R ELIE M ERBUR TR EN R, XEFRT —F _OFKE],

TEOF+RA=1—H, T5EFARFAEFTIT R/ 629,429,000 #EITHY
RISIKGR B HEARZ LA (BifiE 25) .

EREERZ B RIERSMD TR AT T — S U RIEHIA T2,

RIS S S IR R 2 s T :

ZZF12 31 H
2024 £F 2023 £
FBT FHT
FE4 626,215 446,835
BRI ANRESIR#E (fHE 8) 164,170 194,487
CEEE (12,122) (15,107)
FERK 778,263 626,215
HAt W IR E R SRS 2 ol :
ZZF12 31 H
2024 £F 2023 £
FiBT FiBT
FE9 38,969 50,870
EFARRESIRIEE (FHE 8) 20,523 466
g - (11,200)
CeiaEE (886) (1,167)
FEX 58,606 38,969
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20.

HFEPEAK S EIRLT
B2 _F _PUFF = —HIHEEYERE

BIHSTRFNEL fth SISTFRIR (48)

HERSHR, RIEAZAE EUINEABEE, IIRBEJHE) FHIRRREESR SRR
RIS TR T -

#F12 H31 H
2024 £F 2023 £
Tt FEIT
r&=F—1H 557,066 1,012,238
BE— "B EAZTRNH 518,716 352,188
BEmN B EAZTUNA 625,655 556,492
BEnMNBERZTENE 783,377 636,809
BE B ERAZTT=1H 959,159 605,792
Bat+=1A 1,849,742 1,271,029
5,293,715 4,434,548

RN E B RIS BRSNS RN ZES . HTASS RS ARTER
LEREX, BREIFRE, EEEANERREARKEERZN. FAEAAFELE
AR T .

REFENAEEENEBUSIREENSE 9 SMENTHERERSIRIELRE, EETXIRR
BRIKFR R NSRS IRk E. AHETHERSHR, RIBLREEXAFER
BRAREUE NI DR, BE—F_NF+_B=1+—BMN"Z_=F+"A=1+—H0R
[BEEWNT:

RS —FEF

=004 B Vizes) TEHIREELLE BT
S mEt+T=RA=1+—A:
hitSinE 2.4% 3.5% 11.2% 51.7% 12.8%
KHESVE (F87T) 783,831 3,037,210 1,262,487 988,450 6,071,978
B8 (F#87T) 18,679 107,202 140,980 511,402 778,263
—E-=%+=-R=+—-A:
fhitSiRE 7.5% 7.2% 17.0% 38.2% 12.4%
TKERVE (FH87T) 1,060,050 2,518,405 945,504 536,804 5,060,763
R{E (F87T) 79,462 180,946 161,000 204,807 626,215

RRRFRENE R S IR R TR IR RIRFE AT AREN, XAREFESECRREEHIE
RFBREAX, BHRZFNE. EROTEEMBE RSN T E R SIR
TR E RSN, MTIXI N EIERAIRKE B EE RS,
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21.

22.

HFEPEAK S EIRLT
B2 _F _PUFF = —HIHEEYERE

=0k o s T
#F12 H31 H
2024 £ 2023 £
Fi&IT Tt
AR ETTERFE LIS - 88,150
LA s ETTERFE EHRRAUE S 32,928 32,998
&R 32,928 121,148

TE=F1+"RA=1—H, LR LHRINEESIVIRITIIEM M, %F~RE
TEF+RA=t1t—HItFELEEE, ZFEU~mEEasoRAUARMETER
HEAMT ASHRENERE, WHRTESONESREFIHEENELETESRIR.

FENFE+"A=1+—BR"F_=F1+"A=1—H, bAIFLmRIUE IR
ERAGMEIRBBIRATE] 6%HIRAL.

MERMEF N
ZZF12 31 H
2024 & 2023 £F
FETT FETT
EEMERIRITER 1,828,428 1,861,907
ZIRFRITER 19,377 19,494
1,847,805 1,881,401

FENFE+"A=1+—BR"F_=F1+"_B=1—H, ZRHRITERIEHETHRITAY
7R, AR TETIRSISFFEENNIN IS ER LI EM AR TR R LHER.

FEF+"RA=+—0, itAFEAZ [NERRESFNM] BEFRTEIATXRKS
R1T HARAARARMEAR) ZHFHK/ 66,990,000 #ix (CE_=F+"B=+—HQ:
84,485,000 #7T) .

FIEINFE+ZHE=+—H, *EAFHTHPENRTHNINESRAEEFENT S
1,764,967,000 ;0 (—CE_=F+_A=+—H: 1,820,452,000 #&Jt) . ARMHABEEHRTI®
REMBET, AR, RIEPERM (INCEEEA) & (EL. SCRTCEEMEY , A%
AR ESRIENE SN S Z RITEARMeimE G, B DHRCHPERZIRE
FHEBRFLRERIINCE S,

IRITERFMNEERITR, MFNEEDREERRTERERERE. RITERIIFNTIEH
FHIELCRZ T,
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22.

23.

MEFRIMEFMY (&2

FTECMF+RA=1t—HBR"F =

HFEPEAK S EIRLT
B2 _F _PUFF = —HIHEEYERE

F+B=1+—H, t5FRTEFHRANEER

M, Ei, FEFERE 12 MBS RAHMS IR TR E R SIRARERX.

RIS KFA B E R I FRIR

JEEDHA
EBRETUAT AN

EPHA

RAIRER (7)

RAFRER A TEFEARIDIK

NI EERH B ATRIAHERRIRIE
RAFFIR

HAth A (SR

LAt N A TR AL 22 A

SE

() FE2ENF+"_A=1—H, NITKFEER 1,826,276,000 E7T (
+—H: 1,864,144,000 #Et) IMAERFEE - 5E - BRXNEE - #E -

ZEIE TN AN,
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#ZE12 H31 H
2024 £F 2023 £F
FHIT FHIT

61,406

2,414,850 2,335,983
24,726 25,128
5,741 5,835
145,362 155,216
209,855 176,442
483,194 543,132
3,283,728 3,241,736
3,345,134 3,241,736
F+-R=
BELHT



23.

24.

R KFA B Bt RI{IFRIN (48)

HFEPEAK S EIRLT
B2 _F _PUFF = —HIHEEYERE

HERSHR, RIEAZAE EEFARR, LIREENE) BIRSIKERIKE o Hran T

<&ZF61MAH
8t 6 B

fatd

AEEPHA

SRATEIRK - IR () (i) (v) (v)
SRATEIRX - FHEH (ii) (iii) (iv) (v)
Rrf3535 - BHER (MHE 25)
Rrf3{535 - AR (fHE 25)

SRATHIRK - IR () (i) (iv) (v)
SRATEIRX - FHEi (ii) (iii) (iv) (v)
RrfJ535 - BIHER (MHE 25)
RrfJ5R35 - FToHER (fHE 25)

#FE12 F31 H

2024 £F 2023 £

FHET FHE7T

1,543,260 1,514,769

871,590 821,214

2,414,850 2,335,983

#FE2024 £FF12 H31 H BtZE 2023 FF12 31 H

)= S| FET FHAA FET

2026 & - 2039 & 2,585,514 2025 % - 2039 & 2,426,280

2026 & - 2043 & 2,596,369 2025 £F - 2043 & 3,483,128
2027 1,683,407

2026 & - 2027 & 5,342,901 2025 %F - 2026 & 4,889,072

12,208,281 10,798,480

2025 4 251,682 2024 £ 218,916

2025 2,658,280 2024 £F 2,543,566
2025 201,235

2025 1,070,132 2024 £F 1,844,411

181329 4,606,893

16,389,610 15,405,373
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HFEPEAK S EIRLT
B2 _F _PUFF = —HIHEEYERE

24. {53 (8E)
EZ12 31 H
2024 £F 2023 £
FE7T FHBIT
v X ISR
RNAZIRRIRITERR:
1 FREEEERIAY 2,909,962 2,762,482
1FFE2EFR 1,151,855 1,156,400
2FFBES5FR 1,333,342 2,172,073
555 2,696,686 2,580,935
8,091,845 8,671,890
MERR RS
1 FREEFIERIAT 1,271,367 1,844,411
1 FFE2EH 3,948,393 1,083,721
2FFB5FRA 3,078,005 3,805,351
8,297,765 6,733,483
EER 16,389,610 15,405,373

(ii)

(i)

AR ZETRITRFBRRUE TS ARERSEFITEENTHHEXNKE. 8A%
= RWGERIUR TS FAER CE=F1+"RA=1—H: UETEAEARSEAT
LENZHHEXNWE. 88NFE". NMKGEIRER ARG THEA R Z BINER
) . FTTECNFT"A=1T—H, 1ZFRITEMEIEN 3,755,906,000 #it (Z“FZ
=F+"B=1+—H: 2,919,175,000 {#&7T) , EFE5NF 2,837,196,000 T (CEE_-=
F+-"B=+—H: 2,645,196,000 {&7T) .

FTECUSF+ZRA=1+—H, ZHEPRITEFREIE/ 7,963,373,000 7T (TFE-=%F
+=B=+—H: 7,356,294,000 &7T) , HFE5H 5,254,649,000 Bt (CE =5+
—B=+—H: 6,026,694,000 &) . F_E_MF+_A=+—H, EAEALIKHE
RITEERRELAT, 533,250,000 87T (CE-=F+_"B=+—H: 734,139,000 }&7T) B
ARERER, HEPFE NS+ "B =+—HEz1A 107,040,000 #rt (CE_=F+
—“B=+—H: 363,150,000 {&7T) .

FE_MF+"A=+—H, FRITEER 5,915,957,000 BT (CFE_=F+_"RB=
+—H: 5,927,696,000 #&TT) MFESAERAETMSHLEEGRALE, HAERER
2iE, FENAIRMEMNERER, FE_NF+_A=1+—H, BXMECA
5,156,669,000 {70 (—CE_=F1+_H=+—H: 4,909,540,000 #&T) . AEHASTEE
BRZEFLENETER, ARIMETEY. EHRITEFRITREAIDETHE
RNEMEERKIRTER BEME TORAEIRSESIRE, SERAERELIEERN
WSS SKAREEZ:. AEREERNESKEATH S EIBE T HEE 36,
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HFEPEAK S EIRLT
B2 _F _PUFF = —HIHEEYERE

24. {&H% (80

25.

(iv)

v)

TEETWNFHZA=1+—H, A&ERRITE 7,492,421,000 Bt (CE=F1+_"8
=+—H: 8,454,330,000 {#7T) ISFINEFIZENTF 2.40%Z 3.43% (CFE_=4F: 2.80%
E7.02%) TR, $RITH 599,424,000 #rt (CFE_=F1+"H=+—H: 217,560,000
#B7T) IREIEFFRNF 2.96%F 3.35% (CFE_=F+_HB=1—H: 335%) IR, &
N f3&E 8,297,765,000 BT (CE_=F+_"_B=+—H: 6,733,483,000 i&7t) {=ZEE
FRZRNF 2.67T%ZE 3.20% (CFE_=FT+"_H=1+—H: 2.82%ZE 3.75%) it=,

FIEIME+ZB=1—H, KEFAGRITHENK 8,091,845,000 BT (CE-=F+=
B=+—H: 6,529,009,000 #&7T) UARTIHE, HERITEAASTIHE (CEZ=F
+=B=+—H: 2,117,674,000 &7t) FILIBUTIHE (CE_=F+"B=+—8:
25,207,000 #&7T) .

VAR fEE7
AEH
212 H31 H
2024 2023
FHBIT THIT
JEBPHA
A HRES—BIE (i) 1,683,407 -
FPHEAZEEE—FCHE (i) 5,342,991 4,889,072
7,026,398 4,889,072
BPHA
BrEinEs—AHE (i) 201,235 -
NEIRE—TCHER (iii) - 761,506
FPHEEEE—FCHE (i) 1,070,132 1,082,905
1,271,367 1,844,411
S 8,297,765 6,733,483

() —EC=HFINFEZTHERB

T-E=F=RF"H, AREREPEARINERTETIRZENSHM TR
RHEREZEMENS, EMAESTIARD 50 27T, BREIAERHENFELTH

,
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HFEPEAK S EIRLT
B2 _F _PUFF = —HIHEEYERE

25. RUIMES (&)

FEC=FNA+tH, ARaRITZE_=FF—HUARTIHENFTHERE, £
BNART 10127t (ARMBEXRFFS AR 3,000,000 7Tal) , FRIZA 3.20%, TAMEEL
2.37 18, HRRAATHEREI AMAS. FIRMBA—F_=FNA+/\REEEREH1E
BEXM.

TEBE=FtR+tH, FRIAKGTUARTIHEN—"ZE_=F5"HHEE, €
AR 15127t (ORMBEXFFSZ AR 4,500,000 7oA , FFIESD 2.97%, IAMEEE
2.25 &, HARRAARITHEREI MRS, BB _F_=FtA+/\BEEEEHIE
BEXM.

FTE2E=F/\R-+=H, FRERITUARTHEN_F_=F5F=RFHZE,
SENART 10 1Z7T FORREXRIFZART 3,000,000 TR , FFIZRS 2.82%, IAMHE
£ 2.88 15, HARRAAITEEREIT LS. FRMBA—F_=F/\B_+NEEEkM
BiEEFE .

FENF—HB/\H, AAERITUABDIHMEN —E_UFE—HIHHIERE, &5
RAET 15 1275 GOBREXRFSZARM 4,500,000 JTED) , SFFES 2.80%, IAMEEEL
3.07 15, BRRAAITREFRIT AERE. FIEMBA—E_NF—B N REEERHIES
F3717.
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HFEPEAK S EIRLT
B2 _F _PUFF = —HIHEEYERE

25. RUIMES (&)

(ii)

ARBTFTZB=F1"R/\BHEAKS (R BRAE ( [RYIKS] . dAFZE
BB AT) RIBRFSHFIESFITH ( ZiT] ) JREAITE T >3IFIESF T PEGHEER
REEFYINEFRZZRT ( [F32A] ) BRHiE. T-FE_NF=R\H, FZAALT
SR ( [BENE] ) WARXIAIRERITRTFRESHALEN. RIBELTRINE, &~
FREFRAITRERMES T ART 202t R &> FRE/mT B RN R BT 12
NBRTERAIT.

TEWFMNB+AH, BEART 20 {Z7TiIEF>FFIESMIIAT FRRERIT
A 4,500,000 jTal) , EFART 19 2Rk &> FsmTES SRIREE
INWRART L{ZTURRE T FRESFN BRI S IAE.

ZFUFZ RN A RIIKS . B sdHEFRXE A= M T IIRERIIE
REFOANS/KGCERBMEEE " E_=F+—HF—HAEH 9 FrSEHERAYS
IS EE e O =P ST S VNS DS g b Sosiad B Ean p it b 517

IR E T IPEFREE RN R AT >HFEsRIRHIR 5 A5, 8

(@) ARAT>HHIEZF01, HARM 182,000,000 7T ( [AKRE>HFFIEF1] ),
(b) RARET > HIEZF 02, HARM 190,500,000 7T ( [AFERRE>3FIEEF2] ) ;
() ARAT>HHIEZF03, HARM 196,000,000 7T ( [AFERE>HFFIEEF3] )|
(d) RARAT>HHIEZF 04, HARM 212,000,000 7T ( [AERRE>HFIESF 4] )
(e) ARAT>HHIEZF05, HARM 218,000,000 7T ( [AFEREHFFIEEFS] )
() AR AT>HHIEZF06, HARM 228,000,000 7T ( [AFERE>HFIEEF6] )|
&
(9) MARAT>HHIEZF07, HIARM 674,000,000 7T ( [MAKRREHFIEEFT7] ),
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25.

26.

(@)

(b)

HFEPEAK S EIRLT
B2 _F _PUFF = —HIHEEYERE

mifEsS (@)
KRR FRESHHAR A T _NEE "S5,
REREFIFIESE 2 A E RFBIIRIEZIT I Z B AT BRER, BNF 2.50%F
2.70% 2 FFFETR., ARTHLUEET S tF"A"+/\B ( [5 12 NEKH] )
IS 47 HEE"F==F"F"+/\B ( [% 24 MEXH] ) BB REFHIES
4, RERREF=SHFIES 5. AR EFSHHIEE 6 RIUERET-STHHIES 7 B9FI=, £
SRATTHRIES 4. R ETSIFIES 5. MR ETIFIEE 6 /IR E =45
IS 7 FFEARE TN, TR NNEBEERERIRENGEA. ZIHAIN Z17{EHA
HBERFRERIRS 45 BiEEEAFHRIRYS 31 HLL,
(i) ANBAETFFNF—RA -+ -HEXRE=HLTGRSHNAESTFIE.,
SaMSIKRFRTIFRSH
LRSS R R ETTHI PRI :
2024 2023
FHIT FHETT
T4 84,410 61,329
AEFEITHENPEMSHIRE (HE9) 257 271 260,619
WEFE (BEUAR)AREAE fHE9) (5,850) 7,066
FEEfTASH (281,834) (242,495)
LTRSS (984) (2,109)
FEXR 53,013 84,410
A E IR TG -
() AVBEFERNBIERIN (&) QT :
IRIEEIT S RE
BELAEE 12 5
WRIE LT FAZETZERT  HEA TR B
EZL RN EEEE MES 7 p=riih it
Tt FiET FiT FET FET
F=ET=F—F—H 141,096 1,376,414 429,954 (27) 1,947,437
HBRIGTN) IRERASEIERLIT (8,202) 89,498 55,900 29 137,225
LR (6,016) (37,252) (12,329) - (55,597)
FE_=Ft+"B=t+—HKZ
FMFE—F—H 126,878 1,428,660 473,525 2 2,029,065
HRRGTN) 3IRESANHFERLIR (7,751) 89,057 77,736 (91,397) 67,645
CoeyEEE (5,264) (26,567) (3,806) 1,172 (34,465)
FECEFEt+—"RB=1t—H 113,863 1,491,150 547,455 (90,223) 2,062,245
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HFEPEAK S EIRLT
B2 _F _PUFF = —HIHEEYERE

26. LEWSIKRTRFIRRIFTSH (£2)

(ii)

LA MR RAIRI

#FE12 H31 H
2024 £E 2023 £
Fi&iT Tt
AEZEVSIN R R BARSIER IS = 13 E (42,954) (880)
EZEEUSIR R R ARNBIERIN G FR#E 2,105,199 2,029,945
IS0 2,062,245 2,029,065

FIEINF+ZHA=+—H, AEFATHERMFEZ G RitHR SRS
385,778,000 BT (CE-_=F+"B=+—H: 322,161,000 {&jT) , BXSIRABIEHE
HEAESIRZ AR HEMFHRER, ENARESET—EhFNER. ATFEXSHR%K
BEediSii—BiNEzETHELAR, BAEAINARREFN G ek HE ST
HFAFRINSIR, SR E R4 2 2SI S IR B A,

RIEFERIETERZE, THERMAMZAIIMEREEIEBINGEE EIRAIR SIS
M 10%F0R. ZEMEB—FF/\F—HA—AEREN, AERT_FTtF+-RA=1
—HRZEF. HHPEASEINIREFRBRIENEKITERSMN, UARARETR
iR, AEFRGERTET 5%a; 10%, R, NERmHTHERMEAIZIAMEL
B0IRE—ET/\F—B—HEFEZBADIRZ REFEBIUIFEH. FrEERR
FEMHEABNRD IRMARE B CHI RO A HC R BER T,

KRB EERFRREREF A HARERER.

27. IBR&E
#Z12 F31 H
2024 £F 2023 £F
FEIT FEIT
ERE:
10,000,000,000 B&EEARR, EARME(E 1.00 BT 10,000,000 10,000,000
BRITREZE:
2,860,876,723 B, SAREIE 1.00 BT 2,860,877 2,860,877
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27.

28.

HFEPEAK S EIRLT
B2 _F _PUFF = —HIHEEYERE

BRZA (£E)
AT RN T :
EXRTRHEHE KX
F FiT
BRITREE:
HZE2023F 12831 H. 2024F181A%
2024128 31 H 2,860,877 2,860,877

BE_FENF+_A=1+—HI—_F_=F1+"_A=1—H, A &EFAHLFHIEFRK.

figs=
As at 31 December
e 2024 2023
HK$'000 HK$’000
Byt 1,599,765 1,599,765
SRR EE (i) (1,625,513) (1,375,419)
IETENEE (ii) 899,590 776,715
BNBRES (iii) 1,229,302 1,229,302
Hfthfiggg (iv) 8,203 8,203
REBEF 6,862,896 6,306,678
8,974,243 8,545,244
=

() HAhEEES

SR EEEIERERE DA T ARRSIIRE MR AL B RiEINI S Z SRR
FrEZICRERR,
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HFEPEAK S EIRLT
B2 _F _PUFF = —HIHEEYERE

28. f#i&F (£
(i) IEEHES

RIEERTHEMEATN (FRARKENEATZR) , TEMNEATINEEEEF
kg, RIERE, £ 10%EERRERFMDEEEAERS, EERIMHESEEM
EEMBATEMEARRY 50% 1L, FEXFENXEHEIE, EEEET AT REE
KU SIREE N EARNEMER. EZEBEENMERTETEREATZBRFKIKTIR
2.

(i) HNBRIES

SLHBRMER NI R SRENRGERN . RE_T—AF T+ B thBEARTET
RUSBIRR A SATET RS RIRINE, ARBRDENHEBEIAEZTHIEREAN
BARMES.

(v) EftefEs

HitE B AR AEENREMES.
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FEDEAIKE BIRE
BEE T IF A= —HIUFEYSRE

28. fEE (80

(V) ARENZTANLCZINT:

ST =
gL Bpian  ITRERE N BREE BifthEs REGERF BET REEATA Vol
FHIT FHEIT FHEIT FHEIT T FHT FHT FHIT FHT
FEIWF—A—H 2,860,877 389,715 (1,338,525) 7,639,082 64,953 379,366 9,995,468 806,982 10,802,450
KEERF] - - - - - 496,955 496,955 25,047 522,002
FHHMBLESIA:
HINPIREERR - - (134,088) - - - (134,088) - (134,088)
AEELHEELER - - (134,088) - - 496,955 362,867 25,047 387,914
SrE&EURMEES RTINS
EERN"T_=FRERE (HE 10) - - - - - (165,424) (165,424) - (165,424)
EERN_"ZT_NEHHRRE (fiE 10) - - - - - (175,092) (175,092) - (175,092)
DIRFKEEATEIFEA (BHiE 29) R B B B B R R (25,047) (25,047)
FECNF+"B=1+—8 2,860,877 389,715 (1,472,613) 7,639,082 64,953 535,805 10,017,819 806,982 10,824,801
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FEDEAIKE BIRE
BEE T IF A= —HIUFEYSRE

28. fEE (80

E ST % ==
B Bigian  SNTRERE W HN\BREE B=viiy - REEF BB KEEATAR Voli%
FHIT FHEIT FHEIT T T FHT FHIT FHIT FHT
FE_=%F—HF—H 2,860,877 389,715 (1,143,689) 7,639,082 64,953 343,666 10,154,604 806,982 10,961,586
KEERF] - - - - - 371,991 371,991 37,578 409,569
FHHMLESIR:
HINPIREERR - - (194,836) - - - (194,836) - (194,836)
AEELHBELER - - (194,836) - - 371,991 177,155 37,578 214,733
SEEMEESNHITHRR:
EERN"T_"FRERE (HE 10) - - - - - (146,390) (146,390) - (146,390)
EERN_ZE_=FFHIRE (MiE 10) - - - - - (189,901) (189,901) - (189,901)
DIRFREEATEFEA BfiE 29) N . . . . ) . (37,578) (37,578)
FEC_=F+"B=1+—8H 2,860,877 389,715 (1,338,525) 7,639,082 64,953 379,366 9,995,468 806,982 10,802,450
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29.

30.

(@)

HFEPEAK S EIRLT
B2 _F _PUFF = —HIHEEYERE

KEHFATEH
#ZE12 H31 H
2024 F 2023 £F
Fi&IT Tt
F—B—H 806,982 806,982
Fra A FERF 25,047 37,578
DIRFRERIATEFEA (25,047) (37,578)
F+—-BA=+—H 806,982 806,982

GEMERERME

B 2RSS

(i)

(ii)

(i)

E_F_NF+_A=T—BN—"F_=F1+"_RA=1t—HIFE, X&EEHKXD 5|
XY REREF. PHIRENEEEIRIEFRIFIEZEA 129,679,000 AT 144,462,000
BT, FCRE"E_NF+_RA=1t—HB1"F_=F1+"B=1+—BZ58U5NK
URAY [RSKERR AT |, NAERAH TS RERE.

HETETNF+"B=1—HLFE, AEFAESKZGE—IKERATEFEAN
5K 24,726,000 7T (CEZ=F1+_"H=+—H: 25,128,00087T), FHICRE_T_
NE+ZB=1+—HZEZEaUSKREN [ROMRREMBIRI] |, WAERAHL

Nl —1=1/
Em@:ﬁi%ﬁﬂ@o

EFE_=Ft"A=1t—HLFE, —AFLBEHRELTN—RIHzRIRRBIE
BT —E_=FERIRERZIFEZMBLRIESR 37,187,000 BT, NAEEFTH
ShEFN. —FE_FERRENRINERS.
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30.

(b)

(©)

31.

HFEPEAK S EIRLT
B2 _F _PUFF = —HIHEEYERE

GZENERERME (%)

R EET IR S

JTIELENE
LEIERIRE DR IREEHE
RITESL T 715 ezl BE  ZATERFEA
FHBT FHBT FBT FHET FHT
FE—_=%—HF—H 8,979,416 6,282,719 128,912 5,364 13,672
BRIEREF £ (133,352) 683,036 (550,329) - (25,558)
W155# 6,024 4,124 580,420
BIRTHBEATIHERERZ RS . - - 37,187
NIELEMEA DAY EERARIEIRY
£ - - - (37,187) ;
KEERA T BB AR 25 - - - - 37,578
INCEEED (180,198) (236,396) (3,787) 471 (564)
FE=F+"A=+—H~K
—F_MF—A—H 8,671,890 6,733,483 155,216 5,835 25,128
RIS e £ (468,652) 1,690,507 (536,096) - (25,047)
BB AR A 4,443 7,624 528,628 - -
KEEATERFBARN BT . y - - 25,047
INCEER (115,836) (133,849) (2,386) (94) (402)
FEIF+"A=1+—H 8,091,845 8,297,765 145,362 5,741 24,726
A R8T
GRNESREXRMEBZHESIESRESENT:
=12 531 HILFE
2024 £ 2023 £F
Tt FHE7T
rEEENF 1,562 1,258
EREERR 8,474 7,485

37

FTEWF+ZA=1+—H, FAEFANKEMESERS 8,782,066,000 Eit (CFE_=5F1
“HB=+—H: 5,550,547,000 #&jt) MNETKAEEEMBEMMRIEEN (BELHEES. &
NRFHNBIKKIERTEEN) BIEE, (FARERRRRITRAME R RITR RS
(CEC=F+"B=1+—H: FITE5ER) RE.
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32.

(@)

(b)

33.

(@)

HFEPEAK S EIRLT
B2 _F _PUFF = —HIHEEYERE

&8

RERTRE HERRYABINT

#FE12 H31 H
2024 £ 2023 £
FHBIT FHIT
BXAREFEESLIRIRENS RWABI T :
ETABERIRE 1,318,309 2,857,994

FTEEINF+ZHAZ=+—H, Z7&EFA—NFELTIRUEZTBZZREMTIAEES
22,348,000 {70 (CE-=F+—"B=1+—H: 22,711,000 }{&T) .

BAXKIEHRS
BRARGEVFSIREEMEBBOIIREZRBRERN, THEHN, AERARE T NIERKIKAG R
a2

RERF SAEF FE R R ATVAHERRIIRE TN IXEKG325

ELE12 F31 HLILFE
2024 £F 2023 £F
FHET FE7T
IBEERSWE 13,338 10,610
FRIEIRSS AAS 369,241 404,465
REHE 71,321 4,142

76



HFEPEAK S EIRLT
B2 _F _PUFF = —HIHEEYERE

33. EAXERS ()
(b) AERASHAERIEEENEA TR KEEINA L TFIKEKAR S :

#ZE12 F31 HILFE
2024 £F 2023 £
FHBIT FHIT
mMBizERB K 74,474 77,191
A3z 10,935 12,790
() AEFASKEHNKEATRRET FYXEKAERS:
#ZE12 F31 HILFE
2024 £F 2023 £
FHBIT FHIT
SRR RIEEIRS T 44,223 46,165
RAZERSZ 111,854 42,981

d) AERASHFENAEARDABDNWEATRET NIIXEKGZS:

#F12 F31 HILFE

it 2024 £F 2023 £F

FETT FHETT

IREBHE 0} 5,319 11,509
EHIRSS 22 (ii) 976 8,962
REGZ5H (iii) 3,310 2,844
i RIRIEZE (iv) 14,738 14,615
MBEERSZEH (v) 1,759 284

iE:

() REEEFEIEERRMEATHRIITIMYAIFERHT,
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HFEPEAK S EIRLT
B2 _F _PUFF = —HIHEEYERE

33. EXXEES (8

(e)

(i) BEF_NF+_RA=1—HIFE, A—KEARWELTIZCTHRERSEZERSK
1TPEIRIEAX. %SERATRERRAENNITE.

(i)  ERERERM BRI SATHIRIL 2 AT 3RS Y AT,

(iv) EREEERMEATSATHIRRRER BRI Y AISTRE.
(v) EFXREBEERNEARSIHINBEERS 2R TN Y AIRFUER.
ShEmttEMEREIATIAS:

RERAEHPEBMETESMIIR. BKEATSEMAREZSIEEREER/EEFIRIE
@erR [HEftEREI] ) SESUNLFNETEE. TAMBEE, XEASEMERE
W2 B TR ZEE (BRRT) SKEERSRAAREWAR. SATEFANASZFEME
BRI ZENRZZEAERRBEISTIREFZE, MEREREEAREMETEIRE
WHPERFERERE, EXHASYEERRSEREREASMN, AERFH~m
RRSHMENEER, BiZFERAHREDEFTGET, TANFEREEaEMET R
E. BRZNERBLERRRZARE, AITERANNZFIZMAFRBTIREZERKIKTR

il
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33. EAXERS ()
()  KEXAER:
(i)  RWESRELAFRIR

SIUSTHRER <
- E2 BN EATIHRRRTR
- BB A TR R 2 KELSLIR

EL{th SRUSFRIR :

- Ik ZA B AT’ S
BN

BHER=:

- I RME AR IR Z RERSLAR

HFEPEAK S EIRLT
B2 _F _PUFF = —HIHEEYERE

AF12 531 H
2024 £F 2023 £F
FBIT FTHIT
7,942 9,608
19,536 6,810
27,478 16,418
25,633 22,096
15,124 6,329
40,757 28,425
151,656 179,313

* FEECMSFHRA=1—H, NMEAREREEFE AN 15,124,000 BT (=
F+"B=+1+—H: 6,329,000 &) SENI—EEXEATIFIA 7,493,000 AT (—

F_=F+"HA=+—H: 6,329,000 &) ,

ZEMMATIER, REREERZ

3.35% (CE=F1+"H=1+—H: 4.75%) NFF=FItE,

79



HFEPEAK S EIRLT
B2 _F _PUFF = —HIHEEYERE

33. EXXEES (8

(i) RIfFREXTIFRIR

#FE12 H31 H
2024 ££ 2023 £
FHBIT FHIT
FI{THER -
:E Y=Y/ N=T 11,837 8,552
- Ik EM B A SRR R 200,112 208,791
211,949 217,343
EL{thS{IFKIR:
- Ik A B A SRR R 224,942 218,220
- kg E 3,390 708
228,332 218,928
BHIARR:
- Ik EME A TR R 5,741 5,835

* NI ATER, 25 BRRSKEATRNETEZFRUSIMSEREERE.

* Bt {F7R0a 181,569,000 it (B -_=F1+"H=+—H: 184,521,000 #&) A
T, RHPEARBRITAMRIRRITEBRIZEKER; FRER 46,763,000 BT
CEI=F1+TB=1—H: 34,407,000 #&7t) AT, RERIZEKRER,
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33.

(9)

(h)

HFEPEAK S EIRLT
B2 _F _PUFF = —HIHEEYERE

EAXERZZS (80)

AEFEXITFESREEETEA RGN T:

#HZE12 F31 HILFE

2024 £ 2023 £
FHBIT FHIT
e, KeRBXEN () 8,706 18,707
E=H1ESE 2,086 1,977
BRI RIERR 1,465 2,057
12,257 22,741

BIEE/RTEE:
KNEESE 7,855 11,169
HittFEEEAR 4,402 11,572
12,257 22,741

T 1 AEFESENEAEBAREE S NF+_B=1+—HIFEIRSSTMHERRE
TRxE.

FEFSH=R (CF_=F: BxR) BRMBLENIEHEESN. TiRER, AEASERM
B ABIRIEA A RHE R AR R R R T :

ZF12 31 H
2024 £ 2023 £F
FHBIT F87T
fHER — BIEA 1,769 3,202
FHEE AR — JERPHA 340 874
2,109 4,076

RIBZFHESYN, FRREESEAIFELS 5,081,000 #rt (CFE"=%: 5,293,000 #BJT) .
“EOFE+_B=1—H, 3&EBSZSHEESORXIERNEATA 2,151,000 BT (_a\,
—=%+"B=+—H: 4,082,000 {&7T) .
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HFEPEAK S EIRLT
B2 _F _PUFF = —HIHEEYERE

34. ERMITRENARMER2AMERER

EERTERERMEFNY. SLORT™. NMEIKFREMBGRI, MR Bt TR
I, REEHEBSZARMESHEKEERE, TERTXSTETEHNZE.

RrERFZMSEERITRTEEESM T EARMETECERMER. TS MREAY, WS
EEM IS0 TEMTEZIMERS), FEEHERMNAZEERALIE. GHERVSREH
ARER. ERERRTICHEREFREER.

TRATRARZ2AMENZTIETERSZ7 (MIBREEEELE) SRR TR
EFANK. FISERRRTDAT AT A E.

BHR. Bt AEGRIUR S RRIAFRIEAER D Z A RINMETEEB RIS, ERNERRIR
FHZ TEZIUTERANR, MR RASREZHIHE. TEMEER, MERMS,
KERASZABEANEHITENE M. ZFRNRAGRNKENMELIFTEARMNE.

T2 =F+"RA=1—H, UaniEtEEEZMT ARG ZIF EHIREZARM
ETRESIRBAENETHEEE, BXBTHESAMERE.

FENF+A=1t+—HRZFE_=F+"A=1+—H, UanMEtEEETHITAS
HiRar 2 3F EHRIURBE Z R MBS RIS R EEE.

AT E-NF+_A=+—HR_F_=F+_"_A=1—HXEMTEEEZERRT
MEBMN RN EER EEMRE DT

BATE S
Vagl=ts% NS HE LATMERTIIN TR
20244 12 B 31 H: =L
Ft (TF&) 1938 SBARNMER
UasemBErEEET T A HE 2024F 128 /> 158,000 HEITIZILN
RESAE LS R ITEE g R 31H: 2.8% 160,000 7T
20235 12 B 31 H: =L
Ft (TFE) 1935 SBARNMER
UasemBErEEET T A HE 2023F 128 /> 319,000 HEITIZILN
e 210 | VG ITREE g R 31H: 2.8% 325,000 7T
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HFEPEAK S EIRLT
B2 _F _PUFF = —HIHEEYERE

34. ERTRMARMERASMERR 45
RAMEER
TRIR T AERERm T BN ARMETEER:
BASMMETTERYE !
FTECMF+"RA=1—H

WO HE BRI TEE
FIERTHBANRYT EXTEEAY BT TEIA

(B—R) E(FE R e (F=R) it
FBIT FBIT FHBT FHBTT

DasinEitr2BET it A SEHREAYIELE
BRI - ; 32,928 32,928
32,928 32,928

FoEo=EtA=t—F

LR E ERBIATEE
FIEETHARYT EATEBAE  EAT YA

(B—R) E(FE TR FE (E=2R) Bt
FHBT FHET T FHBTT
LA ETEBET ST N SERENIEE
hRE - 88,150 ; 88,150
LA ETEBET ST N SERENIEE
AR - ; 32,998 32,998
88,150 32,998 121,148
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34.

EMTREPLRMERL2FMERR (2

BRRAMNMEHETFRRVENNT:

FEDEAKEBIRAA

B2 _F _PUFF = —HIHEEYERE

2024 2023
Fi&IT Tt
DaseinErrEBET T A\ SRS
FEEFRE:
F—B—H 88,150 186,219
NRMMBEWER/(SIR) (FiE 6) 7.036 (31,218)
S| (94,811) (62,442)
CeiaEE (375) (4,409)
F+—BA=+—H 88,150
B=RNFNEITTETERNTNAT:
2024 2023
T8It FHBIT
DassinErrEBET T A SRR
JEETHRRBURE:
F—B—H 32,998 35,498
NRNEWER/(SIR) (ffE 6) 464 (1,586)
CREEE (534) (914)
F+—-B=+—H 32,928 32,998

REFAT _F_NF+_A=T—HALEERLAAMETEBRNERAR CE_=F1+_F8

=t—H: &).

BE_FTNMFT_A=1t—HILFE, F—RNB_REIARMEHTEZEBHALEHTER, =
TEMIREMAR, B=FIILHATRNIEE (CE_=F: %).
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35.

BIGIRSHERTIR

FEDEAKEBIRAA

B2 _F _PUFF = —HIHEEYERE

TEVEEFR, SR5STENKEMENT:

ERRT

TENRLSIKERR Eth R I £ RS
Hith&Riss ™
MERREFNY

TEANRLIK R Eth MR & R =
HftheRissr=
MERREFNY

FoEF—A=1—H

ERIAMR — RS ITERNERIAGK

TE NS MR BB R TR BR AR

BR

HERR

NN =The 7=

FEIREREAITER) BT SR

PR b I8

FHEIT FHEIT FIT

5,672,480 5,672,480

32,928 32,928

1,847,805 1,847,805

7,520,285 32,928 7,553,213

FoE_=FF+—A=1+—H

LULSAETES
FEIEREAIER) BT LR

PR b g AIET

FHEIT FHIT FHIT

5,060,804 5,060,804

121,148 121,148

1,881,401 1,881,401

6,942,205 121,148 7,063,353

=12 31 H

2024 2023

FiErT FHEIT

3,073,873 2,897,784

16,389,610 15,405,373

4,728 6,855

19,468,211 18,310,012
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36.

HFEPEAK S EIRLT
B2 _F _PUFF = —HIHEEYERE
SRS EEBRREER

AERFZTESHMT EERERNHNERNESSNY. HSFERTEZTEF/IET AERER
I SEERMTE. TEATEEMESRENAR, BIENEIKERE MBI, AT
AR BN AT AR TR, TDEZRBRSE.

AEFEMTEFECTENLEEFRXE. SMDXE. ERNERRNZENE. EFS
RITRINEEERSIMAEXNEZBER, BREGRIAT R,

FIEXfZ

RERFZAEXFTERETERZERMRERRNESNY RFDFIRPBZERISRE
BEEZMERENRNIE. AERAHTHRESRMTE TERIPFERNE, NEFZFZER
HEEERER, FEHT ().

() =R

TREGIAERATEWRFRZERFN ENitEEeARBERNESFNY)) 2FI=
15

FoETFEf—A=F—H FoE=FF+—H=FH
Ll i
ik FIE
% FET % FET
ERERI(ER) $8:
(L 2.67-3.35 8,897,189 2.82-3.75 6,951,043
i R —REXE A BRI 3.35 (7,493) 4.75 (6,329)
... 8,889,696 e 8,944,714
SRR R S8
Bty 2.40 - 3.43 7,492,421 2.80-7.02 8,454,330
B WERINESENY 0.00 - 1.55 (1,847,805) 0.00-1.85 (1,881,401)
e 2,644,616 e 8,572,929
BEREER 14,534,312 13,517,643

(i) SREDHT

FEMFE+-A=1—H, EEEMZELIATNERT, FIRSUR T/ TR
1% (CEZ=F+"A=1+—H: 1%) , HiHESHAERANRREIRFIRD LN
56,446,000 70 (CE-=F+"B=+—H: 65,729,000 {&7T) .

FABRMED T RISFIRTH FIREMRCERE, BHASENMREIEF aTae=4%
ROSCRYERR, T HAERTIREARFEFENN R TETRR~ENIERE
MEX, EXNAERRRREIBNINEETHRENMERFHEZFEX
HEMNEETT. BXROTIRAVEERAIS T ERE T,
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36.

HFEPEAK S EIRLT
B2 _F _PUFF = —HIHEEYERE

MS3KPE SR BIIRRBER (82)

SRS
() FTEZZEHXE

ZIKEL‘MI*FE (EME?&&Ii&ZIjJﬁﬁfﬂiL‘J\G'I*Zfi?ﬂi) HEZER. RERREFN.
SlEENEEmEE BT, AR®. T, #

Dﬂi}iﬁ:&&ﬁ:o

TRFFIAER TR SR ERRLARITIRES B LMY B IHEN EfAR R
RmABRIEMXE. AEFIBER, BHXRZEFMABTI IR, FHERSHRITIE
ICRME, BINSZUSIRERREATERZEIEMETEZER, FRTAERX

b
ERZ TG
(LGBTTS T
F2024 ££12 531 A

AEH FIRT BT ES BT

T T T T T
NERMESENY 9,089 3,444 16,545 46,225
Efnd (107,040)
R/ (RLAT) %H%’\T%Fﬁt ISER 281,674 (196) 5,337,209 23 34,413
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